
Page 1 of 3 

 

City Council Meeting and Workshop         

December 16, 2013 

Agenda 
                                    
 
 
                                                                             
 

5:30 P.M.  Workshop  

A. Discussion of a personnel issue (the City Manager’s evaluation) pursuant to 1 M.R.S.A. §405(6)(A) – 

(60 minutes). 
B. Tax Increment Finance (TIF) districts 14 and 18 updates – Roland Miller (15 minutes)  

Council may enter into Executive Session on this item, pursuant to 1 M.R.S.A. §405(6)(C) 

C.  Naming of the street in front of the Norway Savings Bank Arena – Gary Johnson (10 minutes) 

D. Negotiations update (Auburn Firefighters Association - I.A.F.F. Local 797) with possible executive 

session pursuant to 1 M.R.S.A. §405(6)(D)  

 

7:00 P.M.  City Council Meeting 

 

Pledge of Allegiance   

I. Consent Items – All items listed with an asterisk (*) are considered as routine and will be approved in one motion.   

There will be no separate discussion of these items unless a Councilor or citizen so requests.  If requested, the item 

will be removed from the consent agenda and considered in the order it appears on the agenda.   

 

1. Order 112-12162013* 

Accepting the transfer of Forfeiture Asset (Philip Moser). 

 

2. Order 113-12162013* 

Confirming Police Chief, Phil Crowell’s appointment of David K. Brown, II 

as Constable with a firearm for the Auburn Police Department. 

 

3. Order 114-12162013* 

Approving the 180 day moratorium on tree harvesting. 
 

II.    Minutes  - December 2, 2013 Regular Council Meeting 
 

III.   Reports  

Mayor’s Report  

             City Councilors’ Reports   

 City Manager Report – Railroad Board Meeting Update 

 

            Finance Director, Jill Eastman – November 2013 Monthly Finance Report 

 

IV.    Communications, Presentations and Recognitions   

 

 Mary Sylvester – Community Conversations Review 

 Audit Presentation – Casey Leonard of Runyon Kersteen Ouellette  

 



Au b u r n  C i t y  C o u n c i l  M e e t i n g  &  W o r k s h o p  
 December 16, 2013 

 

Page 2 of 3 

 

 Matrix updates – Frank Roma 

 

V.     Open Session – Members of the public are invited to speak to the Council about any issue directly related to 

                                              City business which is not on this agenda.  Time limit for open sessions, by ordinance, is 45 minutes.    

                                        

VI.    Unfinished Business  

 

1. Order 86-10072013  

Approving the renewal of an Auto Graveyard/Junkyard permit for Morris Auto 

Parts (Public hearing). 
 

2. Order 108-12022013 

Amending the Auburn Mall TIF district 14 (Public hearing). 

 

3. Order 109-12022013 

Adopting the new Ice Arena TIF district 18 (Public hearing). 

 

VII.    New Business  
4. Order 115-12162013  

Accepting the FY 2013 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report. 

 

5. Order 116-12162013   
Authorizing the City Manager to execute the collective bargaining agreement with 

the MAP Command Unit. 

 

6. Order 117-12162013   
Authorizing the City Manager to execute the collective bargaining agreement with 

I.A.F.F. (International Association of Firefighters) Local 797. 

 

VIII. Executive Session  

 Discussion regarding labor negotiations (MAP Patrol) pursuant to 1 M.R.S.A. §405(6)(D). 

IX.      Open Session - Members of the public are invited to speak to the Council about any issue directly related to 

                                               City business which is not on this agenda. 

 

X. Adjournment 

 
Executive Session:  On occasion, the City Council discusses matters which are required or allowed by State law to be considered 

in executive session.  Executive sessions are not open to the public.  The matters that are discussed in executive session are 

required to be kept confidential until they become a matter of public discussion.  In order to go into executive session, a Councilor 

must make a motion in public.  The motion must be recorded, and 3/5 of the members of the Council must vote to go into 

executive session.  An executive session is not required to be scheduled in advance as an agenda item, although when it is known 

at the time that the agenda is finalized, it will be listed on the agenda. The only topics which may be discussed in executive session 

are those that fall within one of the categories set forth in Title 1 M.R.S.A. Section 405(6).  Those applicable to municipal 

government are: 

A. Discussion of personnel issues 

B. Discussion or consideration by a school board of suspension of expulsion 



Au b u r n  C i t y  C o u n c i l  M e e t i n g  &  W o r k s h o p  
 December 16, 2013 

 

Page 3 of 3 

 

C. Discussion or consideration of the condition, acquisition or the use of real or personal property permanently attached to 

real property or interests therein or disposition of publicly held property or economic development only if premature 

disclosures of the information would prejudice the competitive or bargaining position of the body or agency   

D. Labor contracts 

E. Contemplated litigation 

F. Discussions of information contained in records made, maintained or received by a body or agency when access by the 

general public to those records is prohibited by statute; 

G. Discussion or approval of the content of examinations administered by a body or agency for licensing, permitting or 

employment purposes; consultation between a body or agency and any entity that provides examination services to that 

body or agency regarding the content of an examination; and review of examinations with the person examined; and 

H. Consultations between municipal officers and a code enforcement officer representing the municipality pursuant to Title 

30-A, section 4452, subsection 1, paragraph in the prosecution of an enforcement matter pending in District Court when 

the consultation relates to that pending enforcement matter.  



City Council 

Workshop Information Sheet City of Auburn 

 

*Agenda items are not limited to these categories. 

 

 

  

 
 

Item(s) checked below represent the subject matter related to this workshop item.   

 
Comprehensive Plan     Work Plan     Budget     Ordinance/Charter     Other Business*     Council Goals**                   

 

**If Council Goals please specify type:      Safety       Economic Development       Citizen Engagement 

 

 

Subject: Executive Session - Discussion of a personnel issue (the City Manager’s evaluation) pursuant to 1 

M.R.S.A. §405(6)(A) 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Council Workshop Date:  December 16, 2013 Item  A 

Author:   Sue Clements-Dallaire, City Clerk 



City Council 

Workshop Information Sheet City of Auburn 

 

*Agenda items are not limited to these categories. 

 

 

  

 
 

Item(s) checked below represent the subject matter related to this workshop item.   

 
Comprehensive Plan     Work Plan     Budget     Ordinance/Charter     Other Business*     Council Goals**                   

 

**If Council Goals please specify type:      Safety       Economic Development       Citizen Engagement 

 

 

Subject: Tax Increment Finance (TIF) districts 14 and 18 updates 

 

Information: This is follow up discussion on the Orders 108-12022013 (to amend TIF district 14) and 109-

12022013 (Adopting the new Ice Arena TIF district 18) that were on the 12/2/2013 agenda and postponed until 

tonight’s Council meeting.  

 

Financial: The impact of establishing TIF district #18 is that the profit from the operation of the facility will 

increase and those funds will accrue to an enterprise account for the continued upkeep and operation of the 

arena. 

 

Action Requested at this Meeting: Discussion during workshop and approval of these orders during the 

meeting. 

 

Previous Meetings and History: Workshop 11-18-13, Council Agenda 12-2-2013 but item was postponed 

until today’s meeting. 

 

Attachments:  

Ice Arena Revenues and Expenses 

Dec. 4, 2013Memo to Clint 

Memo – Enterprise fund 

Assessment 

TIF Answers to Questions 

Final TIF 14 documents 

Final TIF 18 documents 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Council Workshop Date:  December 16, 2013 Item B 

Author:   Sue Clements-Dallaire 



          

Projected Revenues and Expenses for FY14-FY16        

Actual expenses may vary according to changing circumstances       

          

          

Revenues over Expenses       $       241,339.00   $         90,749.60   $       110,532.75         125,921.57   $       136,418.16   $       147,024.68   

          

Norway Savings Bank Arena    FY14   FY15   FY16   FY17   FY18   FY19   

Revenues          

Concession    $           4,500.00   $         39,000.00   $         39,000.00           39,000.00   $         39,000.00   $         39,000.00   

Sign Advertisements    $       185,000.00   $       180,000.00   $       185,000.00         190,000.00   $       195,000.00   $       200,000.00   

Naming Rights    $         50,000.00   $         80,000.00   $         80,000.00  80,000.00   $         80,000.00   $         80,000.00   

Ice Rental Income     $       590,000.00   $       900,000.00   $       918,000.00          936,360.00   $       955,087.20   $       974,188.94   

Public Skate    $         10,500.00   $         15,000.00   $         20,000.00           25,000.00   $         25,000.00   $         25,000.00   

Skating Instruction    $           7,500.00   $           8,000.00   $           8,500.00              8,500.00   $           8,500.00   $           8,500.00   

Shinny Hockey    $           8,000.00   $         12,500.00   $         13,500.00  13,500.00   $         13,500.00   $         13,500.00   

Pro Shop    $           7,200.00   $           8,500.00   $           8,500.00           8,500.00   $           8,500.00   $           8,500.00   

Programs    $           4,500.00   $         12,000.00   $         15,000.00  15,000.00   $         15,000.00   $         15,000.00   

Investment Income    $                    -          

  Total Revenue  $              

867,200.00  

 $           

1,255,000.00  

 $           

1,287,500.00  

 $           

1,315,860.00  

 $           

1,339,587.20  

 $           

1,363,688.94  

 

          

Line Item Narrative  Projection based upon ice rental revenue projections of 2% increase.     

          

          

Line Items            

Norway Savings Bank Arena      Projected        

          

Expense Summary    FY14   FY15   FY16   FY17   FY18   FY19   

Expenses           

Regular Salaries    $       195,672.00   $       199,585.44   $       203,577.15  207,648.69   $       211,801.67   $       216,037.70   

Part-time Salaries    $         35,000.00   $         30,000.00   $         30,600.00           31,212.00   $         31,836.24   $         32,472.96   

Temporary Assistance    $                    -      $                    -     $                    -     $                    -     $                    -     

Overtime Salaries    $           7,176.00   $           5,000.00   $           5,100.00             5,202.00   $           5,306.04   $           5,412.16   

Uniform Allowance    $           2,500.00   $           1,000.00   $           1,020.00             1,040.40   $           1,061.21   $           1,082.43   

Health Insurance    $         77,996.00   $         81,115.84   $         82,738.16            84,392.92   $         86,080.78   $         87,802.39   

FICA/Medicare    $         15,518.00   $         16,138.72   $         16,461.49            16,790.72   $         17,126.54   $         17,469.07   

ICMA Retirement    $         13,185.00   $         13,712.40   $         13,986.65           14,266.38   $         14,551.71   $         14,842.74   

Cafeteria Plan    $           4,525.00   $           4,525.00   $           4,615.50              4,707.81   $           4,801.97   $           4,898.01   

Advertising    $           8,000.00   $           5,000.00   $           5,100.00             5,202.00   $           5,306.04   $           5,412.16   

Professional Services    $           2,500.00   $           2,500.00   $           2,550.00             2,601.00   $           2,653.02   $           2,706.08   

Repairs - Buildings    $           2,500.00   $           2,500.00   $           2,550.00            2,601.00   $           2,653.02   $           2,706.08   

Repairs -Vehicles    $           1,000.00   $           1,000.00   $           1,020.00             1,040.40   $           1,061.21   $           1,082.43   

Repairs - Equipment    $           5,000.00   $           3,500.00   $           3,570.00              3,641.40   $           3,714.23   $           3,788.51   



Repairs - Maintenance Contracts   $           2,824.00   $           3,000.00   $           3,060.00             3,121.20   $           3,183.62   $           3,247.30   

Training & Tuition    $           2,500.00   $                    -     $                    -     $                    -     $                    -     $                    -     

Travel - Mileage Reimbursement   $           1,500.00   $                    -     $                    -     $                    -     $                    -     $                    -     

Travel - Seminar Costs    $                    -     $                    -     $                    -     $                    -     $                    -     $                    -     

Subscriptions & Dues    $           2,850.00   $           1,500.00   $           1,530.00             1,560.60   $           1,591.81   $           1,623.65   

Insurance Premiums    $         24,000.00   $         24,000.00   $         24,480.00           24,969.60   $         25,468.99   $         25,978.37   

Office Supplies    $           2,500.00   $           1,200.00   $           1,224.00              1,248.48   $           1,273.45   $           1,298.92   

Other Supplies - Operating    $           6,250.00   $           5,000.00   $           5,100.00              5,202.00   $           5,306.04   $           5,412.16   

Other Supplies - Safety    $             250.00   $             500.00   $             510.00               520.20   $             530.60   $             541.22   

Other Supplies - Concessions   $           1,000.00   $                    -     $                    -     $                    -     $                    -     $                    -     

Other Supplies - Pro Shop    $                    -     $                    -     $                    -     $                    -     $                    -     $                    -     

Other Supplies - Programs    $             500.00   $             500.00   $             510.00                520.20   $             530.60   $             541.22   

Communications - Telephone   $           2,500.00   $           1,500.00   $           1,530.00  1,560.60   $           1,591.81   $           1,623.65   

Utilities - Water & Sewer    $         12,000.00   $         12,000.00   $         12,240.00            12,484.80   $         12,734.50   $         12,989.19   

Utilities - Electricity    $       125,000.00   $       162,950.00   $       166,209.00          169,533.18   $       172,923.84   $       176,382.32   

Utilities - Natural Gas    $         46,115.00   $         46,115.00   $         47,037.30           47,978.05   $         48,937.61   $         49,916.36   

Propane & Bottled Gas    $           9,000.00   $           9,000.00   $           9,180.00  9,363.60   $           9,550.87   $           9,741.89   

Security Monitoring    $           1,500.00   $           1,500.00   $           1,530.00             1,560.60   $           1,591.81   $           1,623.65   

Depreciation/Capital Improvement Expense  $                    -     $                    -     $                    -     $                    -     $                    -     $                    -     

Debt Service Principle and Interest   $                    -     $                    -     $                    -     $                    -     $                    -     $                    -     

Rent Payment    $                    -     $       528,408.00   $       528,408.00         528,408.00   $       528,408.00   $       528,408.00   

Capital - General    $                    -     $                    -     $                    -     $                    -     $                    -     $                    -     

Capital Blg Improv.    $                    -     $                    -     $                    -     $                    -     $                    -     $                    -     

Capital - Small Tools     $                    -     $                    -     $                    -     $                    -     $                    -     $                    -     

    Machinery and Equipment   $         15,000.00   $           1,500.00   $           1,530.00             1,560.60   $           1,591.81   $           1,623.65   

Transfer Out    $                    -      $                    -     $                    -     $                    -     $                    -     

      $                    -     $                    -     $                    -     $                    -     

    $       625,861.00   $     1,164,250.40   $     1,176,967.25      1,189,938.43   $     1,203,169.04   $     1,216,664.26   

          

          

          

          

          

          

          

          

          

 



 

 

To:   Clinton Deschene, City Manager 

From:  Joshua MacDonald, General Manager Norway Savings Bank Arena 

Subject:  Future Property Tax Payments for Ice Arena (updated) 

Date:  December, 4th, 2013 

 

Payment of Property Taxes, Tax Increment Financing Districts, and adjustments to the Arena 

Budget have been debated and discussed based upon the generation of Tax revenue from the 

construction of Norway Savings Bank Arena. 

 

Monthly rent payments shall be $43,068.25.  Adding in the interest accrued interest from Dec 1, 

2013 to July 1, 2014 of $223,125, amortized over the 30 years @ 4.5% totaling to the total of 

$8,500,000 for a total of $8,723,125 shall result in an annual payment of $528,408, or $44,034 a 

month.  

 

Under the current City valuation of the Arena, ($7,567,600 at a Tax rate of 20.43 mil) Norway 

Savings Bank Arena and the Ice Arena Enterprise Account would pay approximately $154,606 

annually in taxes through the triple net lease agreement with SlapShot, LLC.    

 

By making the adjustment to the lease agreement to include a tax payment element, the 

agreement with Slapshot, LLC will effectively increase the rent paid by the Enterprise by 

approximately 30% monthly, or an additional $12,883.84 per month, making monthly payments 

$56,917.84.   

 

This increase in rent payment through the triple net lease shall dramatically affect the sensitive 

operating budget for the overall effective operation of the facility. 

 

   



City of Auburn, Maine 
“Maine’s City of Opportunity” 

___________________________      ______ 
Finance Department 

60 Court Street  Auburn, ME 04210 

(207) 333-6600 Voice  (207) 333-6601 Automated  (207) 333-6620 Fax 

www.auburnmaine.org 
      

 

 
 
 

To: Clinton Deschene, City Manager 
From: Jill Eastman, Finance Director 
Date: December 11, 2013 
 
RE: Enterprise Funds 
 
 
Enterprise Funds are generally set up per direction from the City Council to record transactions of a business-
type activity. They are generally self supportive unless the Council decides that the City will subsidize the 
program in some way. 
 
The revenue derived from the Enterprise Fund generally stays with the fund, but can be used for other funds if 
the Council so chooses. 
 
 
 



From: Renee Lachapelle  

Sent: Wednesday, December 11, 2013 2:23 PM 
To: Susan Clements-Dallaire 

Cc: Roland Miller 
Subject: RE: TIF item on agenda 

 
The Current FY 2014 assessment is $1,564,100 tax exempt land. 
The Proposed FY 2015 Arena Building and land is $7,567,600 Taxable building only. 
The Proposed FY 2015 remaining Arena Land is $1,390,800 tax exempt land. 
 



City of Auburn, Maine 
“Maine’s City of Opportunity” 

___________________________      ______ 
Office of Economic Development 

60 Court Street   Auburn, ME 04210 

(207) 333-6601 Ext. 1218  (207) 333-6621 Fax 

www.auburnmaine.gov 
      

 

 

To:   Clinton Deschene, City Manager 

From:  Roland G. Miller, Director 

  Department of Community and Economic Development 

  Joshua MacDonald, General Manager Norway Savings Bank Arena 

Subject:  Answers to Questions 

Date:  November 26, 2013 

 

This memorandum has been prepared to provide information addressing points of concern regarding a 

series of actions, on the financial arrangements for the Norway Savings Bank Arena (the Arena), 

contemplated for the meeting of the City Council scheduled for December 2, 2013. 

 

Taxes 

 

In that the Arena is privately owned it is taxable. The land upon which the arena is located was gifted 

to the City of Auburn on December 30, 2012. Therefore, on April 1, 2013, this parcel was declared to 

be tax exempt. No tax revenue flowed from this parcel in support of the cost of general government for 

FY 2014 (July 1, 2013 -- June 30, 2014). Now that the Arena has been built on this property, the land 

under the footprint of the building becomes taxable while the remainder of the land is tax exempt. For 

the purpose of helping the banks appraiser arrive at an appropriate value for the Landlord's permanent 

financing, the City’s Tax Assessor has completed a review of the building and determined the level of 

valuation subject to taxation. This valuation will not be committed until April 1, 2014, for FY 2015.  

 

The lease/purchase agreement stipulates how the tax obligation on this property is to be paid. As long 

as the City continues to lease the facility the relationship between the Landlord and Tenant is that the 

tenant is responsible for taxes, insurance and all costs of maintaining the building including utility 

payments. The language governing this relationship is found on page 6 (5. Taxes.). In the absence of 

an adjustment, this would require the inclusion of an expense obligation regarding taxes on the arenas 

pro forma, profit and loss statement and any other financial reporting requirement. 

 

However, adjustment language to this relationship is found in the second sentence of the referenced 

paragraph. This stipulates that if the City of Auburn creates a Tax Increment Financing (TIF) district 

that reduces the landlords net out-of-pocket tax expenses that only "…the non-reimbursable portion of 

any real estate taxes remaining to be paid by Landlord" is passed through to the tenant. Therefore, if 

TIF #18 is enacted, the Landlord will be required to pay the taxes and float that expense until the time 

the City reimburses (under the stipulations of a Credit Enhancement Agreement (CEA)) the Landlord 

for that expense. 

 

The impact of this arrangement is to lessen the carrying costs for the Tenant if TIF #18 is enacted. Any 

enhanced profits that result from this arrangement go directly to the Enterprise Fund in support of the 

continued operations in upkeep of the Arena. 

 



Page 2 of 2 

 

General Fund Impacts 

 

Question: Does any reduction in tax revenues impact resources for general fund expenses? 

 

The answer to that question is yes, but this project does not result in any reduction to the current level 

of tax revenues derived from this property because in FY 2014, no tax revenue came from this 

property. 

 

Question: Does any general fund expenses, such as extra police services or extra plowing for the dual 

sheet arena, support of this facility? 

 

Police services for the Arena are contracted as part of the expenses of the enterprise account and are 

billed accordingly to the Arena.  Any Police coverage for special events and hockey games being 

played at the facility, shall -bill the Renter as part of the use agreement between the Renter and the 

facility (high schools, concert promoters, event coordinators).  As part of the rental agreement with 

participants and renters of the facility, they agree, under the Police Staffing levels as deemed 

appropriate through the facilities agreement with Auburn Police Department to be billed for this 

coverage.  Auburn Police Department shall serve as the main point of contract for security and safety 

at the Arena during these events.  If concert promoters or event coordinators, as part of a use 

agreement determine that offsite security services shall be obtained for ticketing, and security, they 

shall continue to work with Auburn PD for the appropriate level of coverage based upon a facility and 

event use plan. 

 

Plowing for the Arena parking areas and surrounding streets and access roads has been addressed 

through an agreement with the Department of Public Services (Public Works).  Late night plowing and 

snow removal shall be the duty of Public Services third shift.  The Arena shall be responsible for the 

clearing of all walkways and sidewalks, entry doors and points of egress during hours of operation.  

During day time hours, Facilities Management has agreed to post a municipal employee on call (who is 

certified in operating the equipment) and the Arena shall be billed the overtime rate for the staff 

members time and fuel necessary to complete the tasks of plowing.  The maintenance supervisor of the 

arena also holds an appropriate class driving license (shall be appropriately trained) and if necessary 

could perform the duties as necessary.  Public Services shall station the appropriate equipment on site 

necessary to complete the plowing operation. The Arena has agreed to purchase the necessary 

accessories (12 foot pusher plow) for use by Public Services to complete this task.  

 

Question: Does any reduction of expenses for the dual sheet arena improve the financial statement of 

the enterprise account and create a financial position more attractive to potential business buyers? 

 

Any reduction to the expenses for the operation of the Arena will improve the flow of funds to the 

enterprise account. All the records of the operation of this facility are public. The lease/purchase 

agreement makes this facility available to the City of Auburn for 30 years. Any potential buyer will 

have no problem in getting access to and reviewing all public documents that relate to the financial 

management and performance of this facility. Therefore, profit/loss realized by the tenant is easily 

analyzed and will not matter to a potential buyer. 

 

 

























































































































City Council 

Workshop Information Sheet City of Auburn 

 

*Agenda items are not limited to these categories. 

 

 

  

 
 

Item(s) checked below represent the subject matter related to this workshop item.   

 
Comprehensive Plan     Work Plan     Budget     Ordinance/Charter     Other Business*     Council Goals**                   

 

**If Council Goals please specify type:      Safety       Economic Development       Citizen Engagement 

 

 

Subject: Naming of Roadway in front of Norway Savings Bank Arena 

 

Information:  A request has been made to name the roadway that runs in front of the Norway Savings Bank 

Arena from Kings Road to the Auburn Plaza Shopping Center, "INGERSOLL WAY". The Emergency Services 

Communication Bureau requires that all road names be officially approved and recommend that new names not 

duplicate or sound similar to existing road names. The name Ingersoll complies with this recommendation.  

 

However, the E9-1-1 Director advises against using the name Ingersoll. Her concern is that naming the street in 

front of the Norway Savings Bank Arena by the same name as Ingersoll Arena, two miles away, may create 

unnecessary confusion on the part of both callers and responders during emergency situations. Both the Fire 

Chief and Police Chief agree and support her recommendation.   

                    

 We have checked with our insurer regarding the City's liability under the Maine Tort Claims Act to claims 

resulting from confusion over the street name. They believe there would be immunity, but recommend we 

discuss it with our legal counsel. 

 

While the City Council has the authority to name the roadway Ingersoll Way, given the concerns from those  

involved with emegency response on a daily basis, and with the ability to avoid confusion with a different 

name, it is staff's recommendation to seek alternative names. A name that has been suggested, based on the idea 

of naming the roadway in honor of someone of notoriaty from Auburn, is Moses Hanscom Lane. Moses C. 

Hanscom was a Civil War Congressional Medal of Honor  receipient. Born in Danville, Maine in 1842, died in 

1873 and is buried in Oak Hill Cemetery.  

 

Financial:  N.A.   

 

Action Requested at this Meeting: Discuss and come to consensus of name for future approval 

 

Previous Meetings and History: N.A. 

 

Attachments:  

Workshop request submitted by Councilor Walker and Councilor Crowley 

Plan of roadway location 

Email from Phyllis Gamache, 911 Director 

Council Workshop Date:  December 16, 2013 Item  C 

Author:   Gary Johnson, Assistant City Engineer / Addressing Officer 



City Council 

Workshop Agenda Item Request Form  City of Auburn 

 

Page 1 of 1 

Updated 7/8/13 

  Requesting Councilor’s Name:           Leroy Walker           12.05.13 sent to mayor-manager   

 

  Second Councilor Name:            Tizz Crowley  gave verbal agreement 11.18.13 

 

 

Policy:  Naming of the street in front of the Norway Savings Bank Arena as “INGERSOLL WAY” 

 

Summary of Issue:   

 

During the construction of the new Norway Savings Bank Arena an access road was built. To properly 

acknowledge the significant contributions that Norris Ingersoll has made to the City of Auburn, Auburn Parks 

and Recreation Department and to the youth of the City it is extremely appropriate that we continue this living 

legacy by naming the new street “INGERSOLL WAY”. 

 

 

Recommended Action for Consideration:  

 

Discussion- 1
st
 meeting,  

 

Enactment and acceptance of the street with the following name: “INGERSOLL WAY” 

 

 

Existing Policy References (Comp. Plan, etc): 

 

 

 

Committees of Jurisdiction (if applicable): 

  
City Council 

 

 

In order for a workshop item to be considered for an upcoming Auburn City Council Workshop agenda, please complete 

the above and present it at any time to the Mayor and City Manager.   Our goal is to have items requested on a workshop 

agenda within 90 days of the date received.   

 

 

DO NOT WRITE BELOW THIS LINE 

 

 

Date Received:    Received By: 

                 (City Manager) 

 

 

Date Received:    Received By: 

                      (Mayor) 

 

90 Day Date: 

 



City Council 

Workshop Agenda Item Request Form  City of Auburn 

 

Page 1 of 1 

Updated 7/8/13 

 

Staff Assigned: 



60
.29

17
0.0

8

16
8.1

1

194.59376.00

20
5.0

0

469.96

211
.00

321
.14

350.86

46
+/-

31
4+

/ -

86+/-

93+/-

19
0+

/-

19
0+

/-

10
84+

/-

92
.99

14
1.9

6

182
.99

110
.94

17.62

31
6+

/-

630.00

472.73

462.10
26

.48

375.65

342
.93

76.
10

49.
57

TU
RN

ER
 ST

KINGS RD (PVT)

1" = 100'NORWAY SAVINGS BANK ARENA

NORWAY SAVINGS BANK
 ARENA

Pro
pos

ed 
nam

e "
ING

ER
SO

LL 
WAY

"

Shaws

Auburn PlazaMasonic 
Hall

Gracelawn Memorial Park

Auburn Mall 



 

 
 

 
 

 

From: 911Director  
Sent: Thursday, November 21, 2013 12:18 PM 

To: Clint Deschene; Dan Goyette 
Cc: Phil Crowell; Howard Kroll 

Subject: Naming of the street in front of the Norway SB Arena 

 
Gents, 
 
I spoke with Bob White from the Emergency Services Communications Bureau today regarding the 
naming of streets as it pertains to public safety and E9-1-1. The bad news is that the state really has no 
say in the matter; Maine is so heavily ‘home-ruled’ that the decision lies locally in nearly all cases except 
where profanity or vulgarity is concerned. 
 
The good news is that our E9-1-1 addressing officer, Gary Johnson, supposedly has the power and 
authority to approve or disapprove suggested names. I believe Gary and I could make a reasonable 
argument that naming the access road “Ingersoll Ave/Lane/Street” could potentially cause significant 
confusion and emergency response problems based on a several factors:  
 

 In cases where the caller is not local and are either reporting emergencies from a location 
they are only vaguely familiar with. While E9-1-1 does have a caller ID-type of identifier, it 
does not work on all track phones and older cell phones. 

 Multiple calls reporting the same incident (say a fire) will take longer to handle while the 
dispatchers attempt to determine WHICH Ingersoll. 

 In cases where the city is relying on mutual aid responders from other towns who may not 
know the difference between Ingersoll Arena and Ingersoll Ave. 

 Delayed response due to confusion on anyone’s part could open the city up to a liability. 

 The proposed name is in direct contrast to, ‘The Maine Enhanced 9-1-1 Addressing 
Guidebook’, which very clearly states: 

o There should be no duplication of road names.  Duplicate names (e.g., Pine Road 
and Pine Lane) or similar-sounding names (e.g., Beach and Peach, Lynwood and 
Linwood, Morgan Road and Morgan Hill Road, etc.) often create confusion during 
emergency situations.  Using an alphabetical list helps identify existing road name 
duplications and avoid duplications when new names are proposed. 

 
o If certain road names are currently causing confusion during the dispatch of 

emergency services, they will continue to be a problem under E9-1-1 as well.  Why?  
Because E9-1-1 service only displays the caller’s address on a screen at a call 
answering center.  It does not change the dispatching of the address over the radio, 
where background noise, radio static, and people working under stress sometimes 
lead to miscommunication and error. 

 

 Lastly, from a convenience standpoint, it could be a nightmare when out-of-towners try to 
located the new arena on their navy systems. We want the Arena (and Auburn) to be EASY 
to navigate! 

 
I do think it would be nice to privately suggest a name which would further the Councilor’s good 
standing in the community.  Howard: You’d mentioned a silver star/bronze star recipient from Auburn?  



 
 
Do you recall the name? I can see a nice big naming ceremony in the Spring, Ward 1 Councilor Crowley 
at the mice, thanking the veteran for his service and Councilor Walker for the suggestion, EL Band, 
Mayor, balloons, etc. 
 
(am I selling it yet??!!) 
 
So my question is: Does Mr. Johnson truly have the right to approve or disapprove a name, even one 
suggested by a councilor? 
 
Phyllis 

 
 

Phyllis Gamache 

Director, Lewiston-Auburn 

Emergency Communications System 

552 Minot Avenue 

Auburn, Maine 04210 

207.786.5380 x2 (work) 

207.607.9929 (cell) 

2076079929@vtext.com  (email a text to my cell phone) 

 

 
 
 

mailto:2076079929@vtext.com


City Council 

Workshop Information Sheet City of Auburn 

 

*Agenda items are not limited to these categories. 

 

 

  

 
 

Item(s) checked below represent the subject matter related to this workshop item.   

 
Comprehensive Plan     Work Plan     Budget     Ordinance/Charter     Other Business*     Council Goals**                   

 

**If Council Goals please specify type:      Safety       Economic Development       Citizen Engagement 

 

 

Subject: Auburn Firefighters Association - I.A.F.F. Local 797 negotiations update. 

 

Information: I.A.F.F. Local 797 represents Firefighters, Lieutenants, Captains and Battalion Chiefs.  The 

contract expired on December 31, 2012. The Union and Management have been working on a successor 

contract since that time. We have reached a tentative agreement. 

 

This information sheet covers two agreements. The first is a short bridge effective 1/1/13 through 6/30/13.  This 

is a status quo contract. The second is a three year agreement covering 7/1/13 through 6/30/16. The second 

agreement includes a change in the health insurance, implementation of an in-service retirement program, 

change in the retirement plan, a reduction in apparatus staffing and a number of other language items.  

 

Financial: The multi-year contract provides for steps in the first year of the contract, suspension of steps in FY 

15 and FY 16 and 2% wage adjustments in FY 15 and FY 16. This multi-year contract represents a sustainable 

pay and benefits package.  

 

Action Requested at this Meeting: Discussion with a possible executive session pursuant to 1 M.R.S.A. §405 

(6)(D). Is also on the agenda for action under new business.  

 

Previous Meetings and History: The I.A.F.F. contracts were discussed in previous Executive Sessions, the 

most recent being 12/2/13. . 

 

Attachments:  

Contract 1 – 1/1/13 – 6/30/13 

Contract 2 – 7/1/13 – 6/30/16 

 

 

Council Workshop Date:  December 16, 2013 Item  D 

Author:   Deborah Grimmig, Human Resources Director 























































































































































































































































City Council 

Agenda Information Sheet City of Auburn 

 

*Agenda items are not limited to these categories. 

 

 

  

 
 

Item(s) checked below represent the subject matter related to this workshop item.   

 
Comprehensive Plan     Work Plan     Budget     Ordinance/Charter     Other Business*     Council Goals**                   

 

**If Council Goals please specify type:      Safety       Economic Development       Citizen Engagement 

 

 

Subject:   Transfer of Forfeiture Asset – Philip Moser. 

 

Information:  The Auburn Police Department seeks to accept the following Criminal forfeited assets: 

In May 2013, Auburn Police and Maine Drug Enforcement Agents executed a search warrant at a residence in 

Auburn based on a pervious drug arrest.  The suspect arrested on drug charges earlier resided at the residence in 

Auburn with his father, Philip Moser.   

During the execution of the search warrant, officers located and seized drugs and evidence of drug 

manufacturing and distribution.  In addition, officers located and seized a loaded Rossi .357 Magnum revolver 

under the bed in the Mr. Moser’s bedroom.  The weapon was seized due to its close proximity to the drug 

manufacturing and distribution operation. 

Mr. Moser was arrested on a charge of Aggravated Trafficking in Schedule X Drugs;    Class B 

 

Financial: The State of Maine, Office of the Attorney General, seeks to transfer one Rossi .357 Revolver, to the 

Auburn Police Department. 

 

Action Requested at this Meeting: Vote to accept transfer of one Rossi .357 Revolver. 

 

Previous Meetings and History:  N/A 

 

Attachments:  

 Memo to City Manager   

 Order 112-12162013 

Council Meeting Date:  December 16, 2013 Order  112-12162013* 

Author:   Phillip L. Crowell, Jr., Chief of Police 



Phillip L. Crowell 
Chief  of  Police 
 
Jason D. Moen 
Deputy Chief 
 
Rita P. Beaudry 
Executive Assistant 

 

Memorandum 
 

To: Clinton Deschene, City Manager 

From: Phillip L. Crowell, Jr., Chief of Police 

Date: November 26, 2013 

Re: Criminal Forfeiture Funds – Philip Moser 

 

The Auburn Police Department seeks to accept the following Criminal forfeited assets: 

 Superior Court Criminal Docket No. CR-13-633 – Philip Moser    

o Rossi .357 Revolver  

In May 2013, Auburn Police and Maine Drug Enforcement Agents executed a search 
warrant at a residence in Auburn based on a pervious drug arrest.  The suspect arrested 
on drug charges earlier resided at the residence in Auburn with his father, Philip Moser.   

During the execution of the search warrant, officers located and seized drugs and 
evidence of drug manufacturing and distribution.  In addition, officers located and seized 
a loaded Rossi .357 Magnum revolver under the bed in the Mr. Moser’s bedroom.  The 
weapon was seized due to its close proximity to the drug manufacturing and distribution 
operation. 

Mr. Moser was arrested on a charge of Aggravated Trafficking in Schedule X Drugs;    
Class B. 

Auburn Police Department 
 

6 0  CO U R T  S T R E E T  •  A U B U R N ,  M A I N E  •  0 4 2 1 0  
P H O N E :  2 0 7 . 3 3 3 . 6 6 5 0  •  W WW . A U B U R N P D . C O M  

A D M I N I S T R A T I O N  F A X :  2 0 7 . 3 3 3 . 3 8 5 5 •  P A T R O L / R E CO R D S  F A X :  2 0 7 . 3 3 3 . 3 8 5 6  



Tizz E.H. Crowley, Ward One   Leroy Walker, Ward Five 

Robert Hayes, Ward Two  Belinda Gerry, At Large 

Mary Lafontaine, Ward Three  David Young, At Large 

Adam Lee, Ward Four 

 

Jonathan P. LaBonte, Mayor 

 

 

 

                                                 IN CITY COUNCIL 

 

ORDER 112-12162013 
 

ORDERED, that the municipality of Auburn, Maine, by and through its municipal officers, and does 

hereby grant approval pursuant to 15 M.R.S.A.  5824(3) &  5826(6) to the transfer of Defendant(s) in 

Rem (Philip Moser), or any portion thereof (one - Rossi .357 Revolver) on the grounds that the Auburn 

Police Department did make a substantial contribution to the investigation of this or a related criminal 

case. 

 

WHEREFORE, the municipality of Auburn, Maine does hereby approve of the transfer of the 

Defendant(s) in Rem (Philip Moser), or any portion thereof (one – Rossi .357 Revolver), pursuant to 15 

M.R.S.A.             §5826(6) by vote of the Auburn municipal legislative body on or about December 

16, 2013. 



City Council 

Agenda Information Sheet City of Auburn 

 

*Agenda items are not limited to these categories. 

 

 

  

 
 

Item(s) checked below represent the subject matter related to this workshop item.   

 
Comprehensive Plan     Work Plan     Budget     Ordinance/Charter     Other Business*     Council Goals**                   

 

**If Council Goals please specify type:      Safety       Economic Development       Citizen Engagement 

 

 

Subject: Confirm Chief Crowell’s appointment of David K. Brown II as a Constable with a firearm for the 

Auburn Police Department. 

 

Information: The Auburn Police Department requests City Council appointment of David K. Brown II as a 

Constable with a firearm for the City of Auburn. 

 

 

Financial: n/a 

 

Action Requested at this Meeting: Motion to confirm Chief Crowell’s appointment of David K. Brown II and 

as a Constable with a firearm for the Auburn Police Department. 

 

Previous Meetings and History: n/a 

 

Attachments:  

 Memo from the Chief 

 Order 113-12162013 

 

 

 

Council Meeting Date:  December 16, 2013 Order  113-12162013* 

Author:   Phillip L. Crowell, Jr., Chief of Police 



Phillip L. Crowell 
Chief  of  Police 
 
Jason D. Moen 
Deputy Chief 
 
Rita P. Beaudry 
Executive Assistant 

 

Memorandum 
 

To: Honorable Mayor Jonathan Labonte and Members of the City Council 

From: Phillip L. Crowell, Jr., Chief of Police 

Date: December 5, 2013 

Re: CONSTABLE 

 

We request that the following named person be named a Constable for the Auburn Police 
Department: 
 
 
David K. Brown II  with Firearm New Hire Police Officer 
 

 

 
 

Auburn Police Department 
 

6 0  CO U R T  S T R E E T  •  A U B U R N ,  M A I N E  •  0 4 2 1 0  
P H O N E :  2 0 7 . 3 3 3 . 6 6 5 0  •  W WW . A U B U R N P D . C O M  

A D M I N I S T R A T I O N  F A X :  2 0 7 . 3 3 3 . 3 8 5 5 •  P A T R O L / R E CO R D S  F A X :  2 0 7 . 3 3 3 . 3 8 5 6  



Tizz E. H. Crowley, Ward One   Leroy Walker, Ward Five 

Robert Hayes, Ward Two  Belinda Gerry, At Large 

Mary Lafontaine, Ward Three  David Young, At Large 

Adam Lee, Ward Four 

 

Jonathan P. LaBonte, Mayor 

 

 

 

IN CITY COUNCIL 

 

ORDER 113-12162013 

 

 
ORDERED, that David K. Brown II be named a Constable with a firearm for the Auburn Police Department.  



City Council 

Agenda Information Sheet City of Auburn 

 

*Agenda items are not limited to these categories. 

 

 

  

 
 

Item(s) checked below represent the subject matter related to this workshop item.   

 
Comprehensive Plan     Work Plan     Budget     Ordinance/Charter     Other Business*     Council Goals**                   

 

**If Council Goals please specify type:      Safety       Economic Development       Citizen Engagement 

 

 

Subject: Tree Harvesting Discussion 

 

Information: Based on the attached agenda request form City staff recommends that a review of tree harvesting 

operations in the City be reviewed by the Public Services Department, City Planner and Code Enforcement 

Officer. In addition this review should integrate the Council’s direction to implement a Park’s Commission.  It 

is clear that a policy review of this issue would fall to a Parks Commission if currently in place.   

In additon the City will review the proper allocation of revenues generated from future tree harvesting activities 

and permitting function of such activities. Until this review is completed staff recommends a moratorium of 180 

days on all tree harvesting activities within the City. The next tree harvest is being coordinated by the Auburn 

School Department and is scheduled for the summer of 2014. 

 

Financial: none 

 

Action Requested at this Meeting:  

 

Direct the City Manager to coordinate staff to work with all interested parties to review tree harvesting 

operations in the City. This review would consider the proper allocation of revenues generated from future tree 

harvesting activities, permitting function of such activities and integrate the Public Services Department with a 

Parks Commission on this process.  

 

Until this review is completed The City Council hereby imposes a moratorium of 180 days on all tree harvesting 

activities within the City. 

 

Previous Meetings and History: 12/02/2013 Council Workshop 

 

 

Attachments:  

Workshop Agenda Item Request Form submitted by Councilor Gerry 

Order 114-12162013 

Council Meeting Date:  December 16, 2013 ORDER  114-12162013* 

    
Author:   Denis D’Auteuil 







Tizz E. H. Crowley, Ward One   Leroy Walker, Ward Five 

Robert Hayes, Ward Two  Belinda Gerry, At Large 

Mary Lafontaine, Ward Three  Joshua Shea, At Large 

David Young, Ward Four 

 

Jonathan LaBonte, Mayor 

 

Page 1 of 1 

 

 

IN CITY COUNCIL 

 

ORDER 114-12162013 
  
 WHEREAS, Environmental issues require best management practices that consider all stakeholders; and  
 
 WHEREAS, Tree harvesting operations are important to the preservation of  green spaces and community 
forests; and  
 
 WHEREAS, City staff  recommends that all future tree harvesting operations, allocation of  revenues 
generated and implementing a new permit process be carefully reviewed by, at a minimum, the City Planner, Code 
Enforcement Officer and the Public Services Department; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Elected officials have considered implementing a Park’s Commission that would review tree 
harvesting operations on City owned parcels; and  
 
 WHEREAS, Staff  recommends a moratorium of  180 days on all tree harvesting activities within the City 
until this review is completed; and  
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDERED, that the Auburn City Council, on behalf  of  the Citizens of  
Auburn, herewith impose a 180 day moratorium on tree harvesting operations on all city owned property and direct 
the City Clerk to notify all potential parties of  this moratorium.  

 















Auburn Ward 1 Report for Meeting Monday 2013.12.16 

Prepared:   Wednesday 2013.12.11  

TO:  Residents of Auburn and the Auburn City Council 

FROM:  Tizz E. H. Crowley- Auburn City Council Ward 1 

 

“Thank you”- to all who made Auburn’s Inauguration such a 

success and enjoyable community event.  Ms. Karen Veilleux 

organized and executed the evening with an awesome team 

including Jim Miller- ELHS principal, the talented Edward Little Show Choir and Concert Band, the Deali 

students and PAL youth chefs who presented a delicious and eye appealing buffet of food and desserts.  It was 

great to see various community non-profits host tables of information-thank you.  I’m sure I’ve forgotten 

several others who contributed to the successful evening.  So now I’m on the look-out for the next occasion 

when I can enjoy the tastes of our students’ great food- think fundraiser where we can bring goodies home.  

Very nicely done everyone!  

 

Thank you to the Maine Department of Transportation (MDOT) for holding a “summit” to discuss public transit 

services in Androscoggin County and our region.  Attendees appreciated hearing   MDOT staff and other transportation 

industry representatives being right here in town.  Watch for strategic planning sessions for public input in the New 

Year.  Let’s hope they return to Auburn for public participation.  The agenda topics and discussion focused on a summary 

of our region’s transit services, including funding challenges and regional coordination efforts.  Attendees were asked to 

rank priorities for future projects such as equipment replacement, expanding bus services- more routes, Saturday 

service, Sunday service, and connection with Oxford County or other regions. 

 

Thank you to the Good Food Council of Lewiston-Auburn (GFCLA) for the 
informative Community Celebration evening – the food from Forage Market was 
delicious and the exhibits most helpful.  The evening provided an opportunity to meet 
Council members and learn about the group's work. We visited with some of the "best 
kept secrets" in the Lewiston-Auburn area - organizations and businesses working to 

create access to good food and to create healthy futures for our local communities.  Auburn is well 
represented on the Council through many Auburn residents including Councilor Gerry, Karen Bolduc, Camille 
Parrish, and Mia Poliquin Pross.  The Community Food Assessment Report is due out in January, so I will be 
updating you more than.  My fun plan for the coming week is to find MOM… Maine Organic Milling, a local 
farmer-owned grain source located in Auburn on the Goldwaite Road. 
 
Thank you to the employees of the Auburn Water and Sewerage Districts for inviting trustees to ride on the 

District’s float in the Holiday parade.  Your families are wonderful and the night so much fun.  

Thank you to the community members who came to Auburn and enjoyed a day of holiday events.  Since it’s 

happening this coming weekend I’ll have share the highlights in my next report, but I particularly want to 

thank Alan Manoian, Auburn’s Economic Development Specialist, who lead an wonderful lantern walking 

tour of downtown Auburn. Let’s hope this becomes an annual City of Auburn holiday event.    

 

Congratulations to Auburn’s newest business -The Brand Collective located at 162 Main Street in Auburn.  

This downtown business is a full service branding and communications firm.  With more than 10 years of 



experience, co-owners Aimee Goodwin and Jennie Malloy provide personal attention and high-level creative 

services in brand strategy and development, strategic marketing programs, public relations, website design, 

social media, logo development, publications/marketing collateral design and development, advertising, and 

copywriting assistance for a variety of businesses including non-profit organizations.  

 

Congratulations to Auburn Manufacturing and its excellent employees on 

the $1.4 million expansion, which more than doubles the size of the 

company's existing operation. Auburn Manufacturing is a leading developer, 

manufacturer and marketer of textile products for extreme temperature applications, including welding 

protection, industrial insulation, gaskets and seals, and safety apparel.  I hope to have another opportunity to 

hear AMI President and CEO Kathie Leonard speak.  In addition to thanking the many companies, from 

contractors, accountants, marketing, logistics coordinators, Ms. Leonard told the audience about three 

important reasons why AMI is successful- they are committed to their strategic planning process and plans, 

they value and invest in innovation, and they value and support the human resource talent- the outstanding 

employees.  It is a message any successful business should follow.  I am amazed that we have a textile 

manufacturer still in Auburn- and its world class… as was every employee I spoke with. 

  

Dates to watch-  

Thursday December 19th there is a Holiday Concert at the Auburn Public Library. The Youth Orchestra 

of Lewiston-Auburn will be performing 6:30-7:30PM.  A enjoyable free event at one of my favorite places! 

Friday, January 17th- Speaker of the House Mark Eves and the Maine Council on Aging invite you to 

attend THE MAINE SUMMIT ON AGING from 8:30am - 3:00pm at the North Wing of the Augusta Civic Center. 

Anyone who is interested in the future of Maine’s economy should attend, including leaders in business, 

finance, industry, public policy, higher education, health care, housing development, philanthropy, social 

services, public safety and local and state governance. 

Friday, January 31st- last day to license your dog. 2014 Dog licenses are now available.  The State of 

Maine requires that dogs be licensed in the town of residence of the owner. Each dog six months of age or 

older must be licensed.  Dog licenses expire on December 31st of each year. Additional late fees are imposed 

after January 31st of each year.   The cost at the City Clerk’s office is $6.00 for an altered dog, $11.00 for an 

unaltered one.  To receive a license, dog owners must show a State of Maine rabies certificate, a spay or 

neuter certificate, and provide your dog’s veterinarian’s name and phone number (if this information isn’t 

already on file at the Clerk’s office).  You will need a copy of their current rabies certificate.   

 

Visiting Hours- The next visiting hours will be Thursday, December 26th from 5-7pm at the Auburn Public 

Library.  Since this is also Boxing Day and St. Stephen’s Day, I will bring appropriate items for guests who stop 

by to chat.  January visiting hours are expected to be Tuesday, January 14th from 2-4pm and Thursday, January 

23rd from 5-7pm.  Watch for confirmation of the same location. 

 

Information provided to residents this period:  As a Councilor I get calls and questions from Auburn residents.  

Helping to find the answers is one of my favorite parts of serving on the Council.  Since our last meeting we’ve 

looked at several things including: 



I got a very nice call from a resident who wanted me to know that Cindy Lauze, who works in licenses and 

registration area at City Hall, did an excellent job of customer service.  She made the visit to city hall pleasant 

and the transaction simple.  It was my pleasure to talk about many of the city’s staff that works hard for 

residents. 

 

There has been a flurry of emails and telephone calls regarding the Christmas lights that have been out for a 

period of time.  I did not take any action as emails should other people are working on the issue.  If you have a 

question or see a light that’s out, call the City Manager 333-6600 or use the report it feature on the City’s 

website. 

 

I also received concerns from residents about the plowing and sanding of roads.  This comes up each year. I 

know the City has a plow plan for streets based on the priority level.  Watch for updates from City Staff- they 

usually provide a review of the winter plan. 

 

A nice resident visited me to talk about the high volume of traffic on the West Auburn Road.  He provided an 

excellent list of suggestions, many could easily be implemented- so I will forward to the City Manager and 

update you all on the results. 

 

Safety Reminder-   provided by Joanne G. Potvin, CEM/ME, Director- Androscoggin Unified Emergency 

Management Agency 

“...WATCH...WARNING...AND ADVISORY CRITERIA FOR WINTER STORMS... 

THE NATIONAL WEATHER SERVICE ISSUES WATCHES, WARNINGS, AND 

ADVISORIES TO ALERT THE PUBLIC TO POTENTIALLY DANGEROUS WINTER 

WEATHER EVENTS OR SITUATIONS. WHILE THE EXACT CRITERIA USED TO TRIGGER 

THESE WATCHES, WARNINGS, AND ADVISORIES VARIES THROUGHOUT THE 

UNITED STATES, THE FOLLOWING CRITERIA ARE USED IN MAINE AND NEW 

HAMPSHIRE. NOTE THAT A WATCH IS ISSUED TO ALERT THE PUBLIC THAT DANGEROUS WINTER CONDITIONS ARE 

POSSIBLE WITHIN THE WATCHED AREA, GENERALLY WITHIN THE NEXT 24 TO 60 HOURS. A WARNING IS ISSUED TO 

ALERT THE PUBLIC THAT DANGEROUS WINTER CONDITIONS ARE LIKELY TO OCCUR IN THE WARNED AREA, GENERALLY 

WITHIN THE NEXT 12 TO 36 HOURS, OR ARE OCCURRING. AN ADVISORY IS ISSUED TO ALERT THE PUBLIC THAT WINTER 

CONDITIONS ARE EXPECTED TO CAUSE A SIGNIFICANT INCONVENIENCE 

AND MAY BE HAZARDOUS. IF CAUTION IS EXERCISED THOUGH, THESE SITUATIONS SHOULD NOT BE LIFE THREATENING.  

THE FOLLOWING WINTER STORM CRITERIA WILL BE USED FOR ALL OF NEW HAMPSHIRE AND WESTERN AND SOUTHERN 

MAINE: 

BLIZZARD WARNING:  SNOW AND/OR BLOWING SNOW WILL COMBINE WITH 

STRONG WINDS TO PRODUCE NEAR-ZERO VISIBILITY. DEEP DRIFTS AND  DANGER-

OUS WIND CHILL TEMPERATURES OFTEN  ACCOMPANY THESE CONDITIONS.  THE 

EXACT CRITERIA USED FOR THESE WARNINGS INCLUDE THE FOLLOWING 

CONDITIONS WHICH ARE EXPECTED TO PERSIST FOR 3 HOURS OR MORE: 

SUSTAINED WINDS OR FREQUENT GUSTS TO 35 MPH OR MORE...AND FALLING 

AND/OR BLOWING SNOW WHICH REDUCES VISIBILITIES TO 1/4 MILE OR LESS. 



WINTER STORM WARNING:  AN AVERAGE OF 6 INCHES OR MORE OF SNOW/SLEET IS EXPECTED. 

WINTER WEATHER ADVISORY:  AN AVERAGE OF AT LEAST 4 (BUT LESS THAN 6) INCHES OF SNOW/SLEET IS EXPECTED 

ACROSS THE AREA. WINTER WEATHER ADVISORIES CAN ALSO BE ISSUED FOR MIXED PRECIPITATION EVENTS OR FOR 

BLOWING SNOW. 

ICE STORM WARNING:  FREEZING RAIN IS EXPECTED TO CAUSE A GLAZE OF ICE 1/2 INCH OR THICKER. 

FREEZING RAIN ADVISORY:  FREEZING RAIN IS EXPECTED TO CAUSE A GLAZE OF ICE ON ROADS AND SIDEWALKS, BUT 

LESS THAN 1/2 INCH IS EXPECTED. 

WHILE THE NATIONAL WEATHER SERVICE DOES NOT ISSUE WARNINGS OR ADVISORIES FOR STORMS THAT PRODUCE 

LESS THAN AN AVERAGE OF 4 INCHES OF SNOWFALL...THESE STORMS CAN BE DECEPTIVELY DANGEROUS TO 

MOTORISTS. IN TERMS OF THE DEATHS THAT ARE LINKED TO THE SNOW STORMS...THE MAJORITY ARE AS A RESULT OF 

TRAFFIC ACCIDENTS...AND 

MANY OF THOSE ACCIDENTS OCCUR WITH ONLY SMALL ACCUMULATIONS OF 

SNOW. SLOW DOWN AS SOON AS SNOW BEGINS TO ACCUMULATE. IN ICE OR 

SNOW - TAKE IT SLOW! 

PREPAREDNESS TIP FOR THE DAY:  HEAVY WET SNOW OR A SIGNIFICANT ICE 

ACCUMULATION...ESPECIALLY WHEN COMBINED WITH WIND...CAN CAUSE TREES 

OR TREE LIMBS TO FALL ONTO POWER LINES. IF YOU SEE THESE CONDITIONS 

BEGINNING TO DEVELOP IN YOUR AREA...PREPARE IMMEDIATELY FOR THE 

POSSIBILITY OF A POWER OUTAGE. PARTICULARLY IF YOU DEPEND ON A WELL FOR WATER, STORE AN AMPLE SUPPLY 

OF WATER FOR BOTH DRINKING AND SANITARY NEEDS TO LAST FOR SEVERAL DAYS. 

QUESTION OF THE DAY:  DOES A BLIZZARD WARNING MEAN THAT THERE WILL BE MORE SNOW THAN A WINTER 

STORM WARNING? 

ANSWER:  NOT NECESSARILY. BLIZZARD WARNINGS ARE ISSUED FOR SITUATIONS WHERE THE COMBINATION OF SNOW 

AND/OR BLOWING SNOW...AND WIND WILL CAUSED REDUCED VISIBILITIES (1/4 MILE OR LESS) FOR 3 HOURS OR 

LONGER. THIS COMBINATION CREATES EXTREMELY HAZARDOUS CONDITIONS. WHILE NO MINIMUM AMOUNT OF 

SNOWFALL IS REQUIRED FOR BLIZZARD CONDITIONS, HEAVY SNOW, NEAR ZERO VISIBILITY, DEEP DRIFTS, AND 

DANGEROUS WIND CHILLS ARE OFTEN A PART OF THESE HAZARDOUS WEATHER EVENTS.” 

...EXTREME COLD, HYPOTHERMIA, FROSTBITE, AND WIND CHILL... 

COLD AIR, STRONG WINDS, AND COLD WIND CHILL TEMPERATURES ARE COMMON IN NORTHERN NEW ENGLAND 

DURING WINTER. HOWEVER, IF YOU ARE NOT PREPARED, THESE COLD CONDITIONS CAN LEAD TO HYPOTHERMIA, 

FROSTBITE, AND POSSIBLY DEATH. TO UNDERSTAND THE DANGERS AND WARNING SIGNS ASSOCIATED WITH THE COLD, 

LET'S EXAMINE HOW THE HUMAN BODY REGULATES ITS TEMPERATURE. 

HYPOTHERMIA:  THE HUMAN BODY LOSES HEAT DURING THE WINTER DUE TO THE CONDUCTION AND CONVECTION OF 

HEAT FROM THE SKIN TO NEARBY AIR, DUE TO EVAPORATION OF MOISTURE FROM THE SKIN SURFACE, AND DUE TO 

NORMAL RESPIRATION. TO COMPENSATE FOR THIS HEAT LOSS, THE BODY BURNS ENERGY TO 

PRODUCE HEAT TO KEEP THE BODY TEMPERATURE AT A RELATIVELY CONSTANT LEVEL. HOWEVER, 

IF A BODY LOSES HEAT FASTER THAN IT CAN PRODUCE HEAT, THE BODY TEMPERATURE WILL COOL 

TO BELOW NORMAL LEVELS, A MEDICAL CONDITION KNOWN AS HYPOTHERMIA.  HYPOTHERMIA 

WILL GRADUALLY WORSEN UNLESS THE OVERALL RATE OF HEAT LOSS CAN BE STOPPED. THE 



WARNING SIGNS FOR HYPOTHERMIA MAY START WITH SHIVERING AND SHAKING AND MAY END IN DEATH. INITIALLY, 

AS THE BODY TEMPERATURE STARTS TO DROP, SHIVERING BEGINS. AT THE SAME TIME, THE BRAIN BEGINS TO REDUCE 

THE AMOUNT OF BLOOD THAT IS CIRCULATED TO THE EXTREMITIES OF THE BODY IN ORDER TO CONSERVE HEAT FOR 

THE VITAL ORGANS NEAR THE BODY'S CENTRAL CORE. IF THE CENTRAL CORE OF THE BODY CONTINUES TO COOL, 

UNCONTROLLABLE SHAKING, MEMORY LOSS, DISORIENTATION, INCOHERENCE, SLURRED SPEECH, 

DROWSINESS, AND APPARENT EXHAUSTION MAY DEVELOP. THESE ARE ALL SIGNS OF A VERY SERIOUS SITUATION. IF 

THE BODY CORE TEMPERATURE DROPS BELOW 95 DEGREES  FAHRENHEIT, JUST 4 DEGREES BELOW NORMAL, 

IMMEDIATE CARE IS NEEDED, AS THE PERSON WILL LIKELY BECOME IRRATIONAL. ONCE THE BODY CORE TEMPERATURE 

DROPS BELOW 90 DEGREES, THE PERSON LOSES MUSCLE CONTROL, AND OUTSIDE HELP IS THE PERSON'S ONLY HOPE 

FOR SURVIVAL. IF THAT HELP IS NOT AVAILABLE, HEART AND/OR RESPIRATORY FAILURE AND DEATH WILL EVENTUALLY 

FOLLOW AS THE CORE TEMPERATURE CONTINUES TO DROP.  IF A PERSON IS SUFFERING FROM HYPOTHERMIA, IT'S 

CRITICALLY IMPORTANT THAT THE PERSON BE WARMED PROPERLY. IF WARMED IMPROPERLY, DEATH MAY RESULT. IN 

A HYPOTHERMIC PERSON, COLD BLOOD IS CONCENTRATED IN THE EXTREMITIES. IF THESE EXTREMITIES ARE WARMED 

TOO QUICKLY, THIS COLD BLOOD WILL BE RELEASED INTO THE BODY'S CENTRAL CORE, POSSIBLY LOWERING THE 

CENTRAL CORE TEMPERATURE TO A FATAL LEVEL. USE THE 

FOLLOWING STEPS TO RAISE THE CORE TEMPERATURE OF A HYPOTHERMIC PERSON.  GET THE PERSON INTO DRY 

CLOTHING IF THEIR CLOTHES ARE WET.  PUT ON ADDITIONAL CLOTHING TO WARM THE 

PERSON'S HEAD AND TRUNK, SUCH AS A HAT AND VEST .  WRAP THE PERSON IN A WARM 

BLANKET AND BE SURE THEIR HEAD AND NECK ARE COVERED. DO NOT COVER THEIR 

EXTREMITIES.  GIVE THEM WARM LIQUIDS TO DRINK, BUT NO ALCOHOL, DRUGS, OR COFFEE.  

SEEK MEDICAL ATTENTION, IF NECESSARY.  REMEMBER, TEMPERATURES DO NOT HAVE TO BE 

BELOW FREEZING FOR HYPOTHERMIA TO DEVELOP. THE COMBINATION OF TEMPERATURE, 

WIND, AND EXPOSURE TO THE ELEMENTS CAN BE DEADLY.  HYPOTHERMIA CAN DEVELOP IN 

ELDERLY PEOPLE IN A COOL ROOM WITH FEW, IF ANY, WARNING SIGNS. 

FROSTBITE:  FROSTBITE IS A CONDITION IN WHICH THE BODY TISSUE ACTUALLY FREEZES. 

FROSTBITE IS OFTEN ASSOCIATED WITH HYPOTHERMIA.  IN A HYPOTHERMIC PERSON, THE BRAIN GREATLY REDUCES 

THE AMOUNT OF BLOOD THAT IS CIRCULATED TO THE EXTREMITIES OF THE BODY AND THEY BEGIN TO COOL. THIS 

INCREASES THE CHANCES THAT THE TISSUE AT THE END OF THE EXTREMITY MAY ACTUALLY FREEZE. THE MOST 

SUSCEPTIBLE AREAS FOR FROSTBITE INCLUDE THE FINGERS, TOES, NOSE, AND EAR LOBES. 

WIND CHILL TEMPERATURE:  COLD AIR AND HIGH WINDS CONTRIBUTE THE POSSIBILITY THAT A PERSON MAY DEVELOP 

HYPOTHERMIA OR FROSTBITE. TO HELP MEASURE THE COOLING EFFECTS OF WIND AND COLD AIR ON THE HUMAN 

BODY, A VALUE KNOWN AS THE WIND CHILL TEMPERATURE WAS DEVELOPED. WHILE INANIMATE OBJECTS ARE NOT 

AFFECTED BY 

WIND CHILL, WARM BLOODED ANIMALS, INCLUDING HUMANS, ARE SUSCEPTIBLE TO THE 

COOLING AFFECTS FROM THE WIND.  TO ALERT PEOPLE TO THE DANGERS ASSOCIATED WITH THE 

COMBINATION OF WIND AND COLD TEMPERATURES, THE NATIONAL WEATHER SERVICE ISSUES 

WIND CHILL WARNINGS AND WIND CHILL ADVISORIES. THE FOLLOWING VALUES ARE USED FOR 

ALL OF NEW HAMPSHIRE AND WESTERN AND SOUTHERN MAINE. 

WIND CHILL WARNINGS - ISSUED FOR WIND CHILL TEMPERATURES OF -30 DEGREES OR COLDER 

WIND CHILL ADVISORIES - ISSUED FOR WIND CHILL TEMPERATURES BETWEEN -20 AND -30 DEGREES 



EXTREMELY COLD TEMPERATURES, EVEN WITHOUT WIND, ALSO INCREASE THE THREAT OF FROSTBITE, ESPECIALLY IF 

YOU ARE OUTSIDE OVER AN EXTENDED PERIOD OF TIME. BE SURE TO DRESS APPROPRIATELY FOR ANY OUTSIDE 

ACTIVITIES ON COLD DAYS. 

PREPAREDNESS TIP FOR THE DAY:  DURING VERY COLD AND WINDY DAYS, WEAR LAYERED CLOTHING.  EACH LAYER OF 

CLOTHING TRAPS A SMALL AMOUNT OF AIR THAT HELPS INSULATE THE BODY FROM THE OUTSIDE COLD AND WIND. 

THE TOP LAYERS WILL CUT DOWN ON THE PENETRATION OF THE WIND, ALLOWING THE LOWER LAYERS TO TRAP HEAT, 

THUS LOWERING THE AMOUNT OF HEAT THAT THE WIND CAN CARRY AWAY FROM THE BODY. 

QUESTION OF THE DAY:  DOES THE WIND CHILL TEMPERATURE AFFECT MY CAR OR CAR BATTERY?  WILL MY CAR BE 

HARDER TO START WHEN THE WIND CHILL TEMPERATURE IS COLD. 

ANSWER:  NO TO BOTH QUESTIONS. YOUR CAR AND YOUR CAR'S BATTERY ARE AFFECTED ONLY BY THE ACTUAL 

TEMPERATURE. WIND CHILL TEMPERATURES ARE A MEASURE OF THE RATE OF HEAT LOSS FROM THE HUMAN BODY. 

FOR A CAR LEFT OVERNIGHT, THE TEMPERATURE OF THE CAR IS APPROXIMATELY THE SAME AS THE SURROUNDING AIR, 

SO THERE WOULD BE NO ADDITIONAL HEAT LOSS DUE TO WIND, HENCE NO WIND CHILL. IN GENERAL, MORNING 

TEMPERATURES ARE COLDEST ON NIGHTS WITH LITTLE OR NO WIND. THEREFORE, YOUR CAR BATTERY IS MORE LIKELY 

TO FAIL ON A NIGHT WITH LITTLE OR NO WIND THAN A WINDY NIGHT.” 

In closing, as we close out 2013 and begin a New Year, I hope 2014 brings you these wishes: 

 
Warmth of love, comfort of home, joy for your children, 
Company and support of family n friends 
A caring heart that accepts and  treats all human beings equally 
Enrichment of knowledge and richness of diversity 
Courage to seek n speak the truth Even if it means standing alone 
Hopes n dreams of a just world and the desire to make it happen 
A light to guide your path, helping hands to strengthen unity 
Serenity n peace within your mind,  
Heart and soul, food for thought and soul,  

A hand to hold             Tizz 



City of Auburn, Maine 
“Maine’s City of Opportunity” 

___________________________      ______ 
Financial Services 

60 Court Street • Suite 411 • Auburn, ME 04210 
(207) 333-6600 Voice • (207) 333-6601 Automated • (207) 333-6620 Fax 

www.auburnmaine.org 
      
 

 
 
 
 
 
TO:    Clinton Deschene, City Manager 

FROM:   Jill Eastman, Finance Director 

REF:    November 2013 Financial Report 

DATE:  December 12, 2013 
 
The following is a discussion regarding the significant variances found in the City’s November financial 
report. Please note that although the monthly financial report contains amounts reported by the 
School Department, this discussion is limited to the City’s financial results and does not attempt to 
explain any variances for the School Department. 
 

The City has completed its fifth month of the current fiscal year. As a guideline for tracking purposes, 
revenues and expenditures should amount to approximately 41.7% of the annual budget.  However, 
not all costs and revenues are distributed evenly throughout the year; individual line items can vary 
based upon cyclical activity.    
 

Revenues 
 

Revenues collected through November 30th, including the school department were $34,838,097, or 
48.12%, of the budget. The municipal revenues including property taxes were $25,737,099, or 49.78% 
of the budget which is more than the same period last year by 0.3%. The accounts listed below are 
noteworthy. 

 

A. September 15th the first installment for real estate taxes were due. The current year tax 
revenue is at 50.22% as compared to 49.42% last year.  

 

B. Excise tax for the month of November is at 46.85%. This is an $83,403 increase from FY 
13. Our excise revenues for FY14 are 5.18% above projections as of November 30, 2013.  

 

C. State Revenue Sharing for the month of November is 41.27% or $680,729. The city 
received $121,033 this month compared to $187,635 FY 13, $183,121 FY12, $204,921 
FY11, and $240,705 FY10. This is 35.5% decrease this year from last November.  
 

 



 2 

D. Unclassified miscellaneous revenue show and increase of $157,328 over last year. This 
is primarily due to an error in posting the School Departments transfer in for Worker’s 
Compensation of $138,501. The other large deposits in the unclassified were a $15,059 
dividend from Maine Municipal Association on our Property and Casuality Insurance 
and a reimbursement from the City of Augusta of $18,000 for one of the City’s police 
officers that they hired. The posting error has been corrected in December. 
 

Expenditures 
 
City expenditures through November 2013 were $17,577,197 or 48.64%, of the budget. This is 6.11% 
less than the same period last year. Noteworthy variances are: 
 

A. The operating departments are all in line with where they should be at this time. Several line 
items are paid quarterly, semi-annually or annually thus creating the appearance of being over 
budget. I have and will continue to monitor each departments expenditures throughout the 
fiscal year. 

 
Investments  
 
This section contains an investment schedule as of November 30th.  Currently the City’s funds are 
earning an average interest rate of .23%. 
 
 
 
         
        Respectfully submitted, 

        
          

Jill M. Eastman 
 Finance Director 



 UNAUDITED UNAUDITED UNAUDITED
Nov 30 Oct 31 Increase JUNE 30
2013 2013 (Decrease) 2013

ASSETS

CASH 11,234,319$         15,456,710$       (4,222,391)$          11,225,627$       
RECEIVABLES -                        
  ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLES 852,101                788,601              63,500                  1,115,890           
  TAXES RECEIVABLE-CURRENT 19,421,462           19,813,004         (391,542)               89,723                
  DELINQUENT TAXES 554,453                554,584              (131)                      543,772              
  TAX LIENS 867,312                935,566              (68,254)                 1,391,484           
  NET DUE TO/FROM OTHER FUNDS 5,354,105             3,204,866           2,149,239             1,817,784           

 
TOTAL ASSETS 38,283,752$         40,753,331$       (2,469,579)$          16,184,280$       

 
 

LIABILITIES & FUND BALANCES  
 

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE (1,140,466)$          (7,829)$               (1,132,636)$          (529,178)$           
PAYROLL LIABILITIES 14,849                  (1,689)                 16,538                  (93,082)               
ACCRUED PAYROLL (4,655)                   (4,655)                 -                        (1,047,863)          
STATE FEES PAYABLE (22,503)                 (31,100)               8,596                    (31)                      
ESCROWED AMOUNTS (41,865)                 (41,865)               -                        (41,865)               
DEFERRED REVENUE (20,715,625)          (21,050,704)        335,079                (1,858,354)          

 
     TOTAL LIABILITIES (21,910,266)$        (21,137,843)$      (772,423)$             (3,570,373)$        

 
FUND BALANCE - UNASSIGNED (15,507,654)$        (18,749,656)$      3,242,002$           (11,522,954)$      
FUND BALANCE - RESTRICTED FOR  
     WORKERS COMP & UNEMPLOYMENT 1,001,137             1,001,137           -                        776,017              

FUND BALANCE - RESTRICTED (1,866,970)            (1,866,970)          -                        (1,866,970)          
 

     TOTAL FUND BALANCE (16,373,486)$        (24,045,103)$      7,671,616$           (12,613,907)$      
 

  
     TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE (38,283,752)$        (46,515,516)$      8,231,764$           (16,184,280)$      

CITY OF AUBURN, MAINE
 BALANCE SHEET - CITY GENERAL FUND, WC AND UNEMPLOYMENT FUND 

AS of November 2013, October 2013, and June 2013 (unaudited)



REVENUES - GENERAL FUND COMPARATIVE
THROUGH November 30, 2013 VS November 30, 2012 

ACTUAL ACTUAL
FY 2014 REVENUES % OF FY 2013 REVENUES % OF  

REVENUE SOURCE BUDGET THRU NOV 2013 BUDGET BUDGET THRU NOV 2012 BUDGET VARIANCE
TAXES
  PROPERTY TAX REVENUE- 42,844,641$           21,517,198$      50.22% 42,121,141$     20,814,802$      49.42% 702,396$          
  PRIOR YEAR REVENUE -$                        463,460$            -$                 534,165  (70,705)$          
  HOMESTEAD EXEMPTION REIMBURSEMENT 482,575$                371,573$           77.00% 514,584$          377,161$           73.29% (5,588)$            
  ALLOWANCE FOR ABATEMENT -$                        -$                    -$                 -$                        -$                 
  ALLOWANCE FOR UNCOLLECTIBLE TAXES -$                        -$                    -$                 -$                        -$                 
  EXCISE 3,068,500$             1,437,532$        46.85% 3,018,500$       1,354,129$        44.86% 83,403$            
  PENALTIES & INTEREST 140,000$                37,649$             26.89% 140,000$          49,919$             35.66% (12,270)$          

     TOTAL TAXES 46,535,716$           23,827,412$      51.20% 45,794,225$     23,130,176$      50.51% 697,236$          
  

LICENSES AND PERMITS   
  BUSINESS 47,300$                  19,950$             42.18% 39,900$            28,565$             71.59% (8,615)$            
  NON-BUSINESS 338,300$                168,774$           49.89% 260,700$          175,229$           67.21% (6,455)$            

     TOTAL LICENSES 385,600$                188,724$           48.94% 300,600$          203,794$           67.80% (15,070)$          
  

INTERGOVERNMENTAL ASSISTANCE   
  STATE-LOCAL ROAD ASSISTANCE 440,000$                473,451$           107.60% 378,000$          228,022$           60.32% 245,429$          
  STATE REVENUE SHARING 1,649,470$             680,729$           41.27% 2,400,000$       1,004,730$        41.86% (324,001)$        
  WELFARE REIMBURSEMENT 53,000$                  24,838$             46.86% 53,083$            17,143$             32.29% 7,695$              
  OTHER STATE AID 22,000$                  -$                   0.00% 21,000$            18,054$             85.97% (18,054)$          
  CITY OF LEWISTON 155,000$                -$                   0.00% 158,362$          -$                       0.00% -$                 
     TOTAL INTERGOVERNMENTAL ASSISTANCE 2,319,470$             1,179,017$        50.83% 3,010,445$       1,267,949$        42.12% (88,932)$          

  
CHARGE FOR SERVICES   
  GENERAL GOVERNMENT 140,240$                70,343$             50.16% 130,955$          49,850$             38.07% 20,493$            
  PUBLIC SAFETY 366,152$                61,258$             16.73% 263,102$          43,404$             16.50% 17,854$            
  EMS AGREEMENT 100,000$                41,667$             41.67% 100,000$          33,333$             33.33% 8,334$              

     TOTAL CHARGE FOR SERVICES 606,392$                173,267$           28.57% 494,057$          126,587$           25.62% 46,680$            
  

FINES   
  PARKING TICKETS & MISC FINES 40,000$                  7,976$               19.94% 45,000$            8,312$               18.47% (336)$               

   
MISCELLANEOUS    
  INVESTMENT INCOME 20,000$                  208$                  1.04% 30,000$            13,669$             45.56% (13,461)$          
  INTEREST-BOND PROCEEDS 2,000$                    -$                   0.00% 2,000$              -$                       0.00% -$                 
  RENTS 122,000$                -$                   0.00% 122,000$          121,827$           99.86% (121,827)$        
  UNCLASSIFIED 17,500$                  181,993$           1039.96% 5,150$              24,665$             478.93% 157,328$          
  SALE OF RECYCLABLES 4,800$                    -$                   0.00% -$                 -$                        -$                 
  COMMERCIAL SOLID WASTE FEES -$                        22,168$              -$                 21,552$              616$                 
  SALE OF PROPERTY 20,000$                  60,131$             300.65% 20,000$            16,694$             83.47% 43,437$            
  RECREATION PROGRAMS/ARENA -$                        -$                    43,275$            -$                       0.00% -$                 
  MMWAC HOST FEES 204,000$                85,747$             42.03% 197,400$          84,128$             42.62% 1,619$              
  9-1-1 DEBT SERVICE REIMBURSEMENT -$                        -$                    -$                 (20)$                   0.00% 20$                   
  TRANSFER IN: TIF 520,000$                -$                   0.00% 324,212$          324,212$           100.00% (324,212)$        
  ENERGY EFFICIENCY 2,000$                    279$                  13.96% 2,000$              437$                  21.85% (158)$               
  CDBG 58,000$                  -$                   0.00% 8,000$              1,334$               16.68% (1,334)$            
  UTILITY REIMBURSEMENT 37,500$                  10,177$             27.14% 37,500$            8,014$               21.37% 2,163$              
  CITY FUND BALANCE CONTRIBUTION 1,350,000$             -$                   0.00% 1,350,000$       -$                       0.00% -$                 

     TOTAL MISCELLANEOUS 2,357,800$             360,703$           15.30% 2,141,537$       616,512$           28.79% (255,809)$        
-$                       

TOTAL GENERAL FUND REVENUES 52,244,978$           25,737,099$      49.26% 51,785,864$     25,353,330$      48.96% 383,769$          

SCHOOL REVENUES
  EDUCATION SUBSIDY 17,942,071$           8,932,415$        49.78% 17,942,071$     6,913,994$        38.54% 2,018,421$       
  EDUCATION 1,358,724$             168,584$           12.41% 1,358,724$       197,155$           14.51% (28,571)$          
  SCHOOL FUND BALANCE CONTRIBUTION 855,251$                -$                   0.00% 855,251$          -$                       0.00% -$                 

TOTAL SCHOOL 20,156,046$           9,100,999$        45.15% 20,156,046$     7,111,149$        35.28% 1,989,850$       

GRAND TOTAL REVENUES 72,401,024$           34,838,097$      48.12% 71,941,910$     32,464,479$      45.13% 2,373,618$       

CITY OF AUBURN, MAINE



Unaudited  Unaudited  
FY 2014 EXP % OF FY 2013 EXP % OF

DEPARTMENT BUDGET THRU NOV 2013 BUDGET BUDGET THRU NOV 2012 BUDGET VARIANCE
ADMINISTRATION  
   MAYOR AND COUNCIL 71,079$                30,583$              43.03% 99,690$          51,652$              51.81% (21,069)$       
   CITY MANAGER 238,903$              100,458$            42.05% 343,296$        101,232$            29.49% (774)$            
   ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 318,933$              120,630$            37.82% -$                   -$                         120,630$      
   ASSESSING SERVICES 172,277$              70,616$              40.99% 183,801$        67,223$              36.57% 3,393$          
   CITY CLERK 162,045$              71,038$              43.84% 150,676$        61,355$              40.72% 9,683$          
   FINANCIAL SERVICES 405,976$              162,376$            40.00% 419,539$        159,344$            37.98% 3,032$          
   HUMAN RESOURCES 139,566$              52,693$              37.75% 137,836$        52,682$              38.22% 11$               
   INFORMATION COMMUNICATION TECHNOLOGY 395,350$              222,641$            56.31% 386,632$        203,757$            52.70% 18,884$        
   LEGAL SERVICES 100,000$              17,047$              17.05% 85,000$          8,819$                10.38% 8,228$          

TOTAL ADMINISTRATION 2,004,129$           848,082$            42.32% 1,806,470$     706,064$            39.09% 142,018$      

COMMUNITY SERVICES
ENGINEERING 280,188$              107,120$            38.23% 320,370$        120,131$            37.50% (13,011)$       

   COMMUNITY PROGRAMS -$                          -$                         14,050$          10,150$              72.24% (10,150)$       
   PLANNING & PERMITTING 775,230$              312,962$            40.37% 776,532$        279,947$            36.05% 33,015$        
   PARKS AND RECREATION 567,334$              210,926$            37.18% 602,191$        221,828$            36.84% (10,902)$       
   HEALTH & SOCIAL SERVICES 189,539$              91,441$              48.24% 176,567$        90,598$              51.31% 843$             
   PUBLIC LIBRARY 946,737$              464,618$            49.08% 968,292$        324,896$            33.55% 139,722$      

TOTAL COMMUNITY SERVICES 2,759,028$           1,187,067$         43.02% 2,858,002$     1,047,550$         36.65% 139,517$      
 

FISCAL SERVICES
   DEBT SERVICE 6,321,584$           5,801,341$         91.77% 6,682,797$     6,083,230$         91.03% (281,889)$     
   PROPERTY 715,667$              236,459$            33.04% 699,114$        273,905$            39.18% (37,446)$       
   WORKERS COMPENSATION 431,446$              -$                        0.00% 415,000$        -$                        0.00% -$                  
   WAGES & BENEFITS 4,397,585$           1,906,169$         43.35% 4,602,545$     1,767,850$         38.41% 138,319$      
   EMERGENCY RESERVE (10108062-670000) 375,289$              -$                        0.00% 333,818$        -$                        0.00% -$                  

TOTAL FISCAL SERVICES 12,241,571$         7,943,969$         64.89% 12,733,274$   8,124,985$         63.81% (181,016)$     

PUBLIC SAFETY
   FIRE DEPARTMENT 4,024,789$           1,634,797$         40.62% 3,904,344$     1,552,042$         39.75% 82,755$        
   POLICE DEPARTMENT 3,589,583$           1,385,454$         38.60% 3,439,583$     1,341,975$         39.02% 43,479$        

TOTAL PUBLIC SAFETY 7,614,372$           3,020,251$         39.67% 7,343,927$     2,894,017$         39.41% 126,234$      

PUBLIC WORKS
   PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT 4,730,432$           1,534,949$         32.45% 4,617,744$     1,575,647$         34.12% (40,698)$       
   WATER AND SEWER 558,835$              282,963$            50.63% 558,835$        282,983$            50.64% (20)$              

TOTAL PUBLIC WORKS 5,289,267$           1,817,912$         34.37% 5,176,579$     1,858,630$         35.90% (40,718)$       

INTERGOVERNMENTAL PROGRAMS
   AUBURN-LEWISTON AIRPORT 105,000$              52,500$              50.00% 105,000$        52,500$              50.00% -$                  
   E911 COMMUNICATION CENTER 1,036,409$           518,425$            50.02% 1,035,381$     516,982$            49.93% 1,443$          
   LATC-PUBLIC TRANSIT 235,496$              117,686$            49.97% 235,548$        -$                        0.00% 117,686$      
   LAEGC-ECONOMIC COUNCIL -$                          -$                         160,687$        80,343$              50.00% (80,343)$       
COMMUNITY LITTLE THEATER -$                          -$                         20,160$          -$                        0.00% -$                  
   TAX SHARING 270,000$              41,793$              15.48% 289,000$        43,602$              15.09% (1,809)$         

TOTAL INTERGOVERNMENTAL 1,646,905$           730,404$            44.35% 1,845,776$     693,427$            37.57% 36,977$        

COUNTY TAX 2,029,513$           2,029,512$         100.00% 2,006,244$     2,006,244$         100.00% 23,268$        
TIF (10108058-580000) 2,555,723$           -$                        0.00% 2,619,142$     2,590,947$         98.92% (2,590,947)$  
OVERLAY -$                          -$                         -$                   -$                        0.00% -$                  

-$                  
TOTAL CITY DEPARTMENTS 36,140,508$         17,577,197$       48.64% 36,389,414$   19,921,864$       54.75% (2,344,667)$  

EDUCATION DEPARTMENT 37,128,028$         13,414,290$       36.13% 34,705,246$   7,210,469$         20.78% 6,203,821$   
  

TOTAL GENERAL FUND EXPENDITURES 73,268,536$         30,991,487$       42.30% 71,094,660$   27,132,333$       38.16% 3,859,154$   

 CITY OF AUBURN, MAINE
EXPENDITURES - GENERAL FUND COMPARATIVE

THROUGH November 30, 2013 VS November 30, 2012  



CITY OF AUBURN, MAINE
INVESTMENT SCHEDULE
AS Of Novmeber 30, 2013

BALANCE BALANCE INTEREST WEIGHTED
INVESTMENT FUND November 30, 2013 October 31, 2013 RATE AVG YIELD

BANKNORTH MNY MKT 24-1242924 GENERAL FUND 55,362.76$                   55,355.63$                   0.20%
BANKNORTH MNY MKT 24-1745910 GF-WORKERS COMP 49,257.97$                   49,254.62$                   0.10%
BANKNORTH MNY MKT 24-1745944 GF-UNEMPLOYMENT 66,937.24$                   66,928.62$                   0.20%
BANKNORTH CD 7033 GF-UNEMPLOYMENT 102,404.84$                 102,404.84$                 2.64%
BANKNORTH MNY MKT 24-1809302 SPECIAL REVENUE 52,585.75$                   52,578.98$                   0.20%
BANKNORTH MNY MKT 24-1745902 SR-PERMIT PARKING 198,098.51$                 198,073.00$                 0.20%
BANKNORTH MNY MKT 24-1745895 SR-TIF 1,118,421.96$              1,118,277.96$              0.20%
BANKNORTH MNY MKT 24-1746819 CAPITAL PROJECTS 11,764,427.02$            5,901,551.38$              0.20%
BANKNORTH MNY MKT 24-1745928 ICE ARENA 249,427.40$                 249,395.29$                 0.10%

GRAND TOTAL 13,656,923.45$            7,793,820.32$              0.23%



City of Auburn, Maine 
“Maine’s City of Opportunity” 

___________________________      ______ 
Financial Services 

60 Court Street • Suite 411 • Auburn, ME 04210 
(207) 333-6600 Voice • (207) 333-6601 Automated • (207) 333-6620 Fax 

www.auburnmaine.org 
      
 

 
 
To: Clinton Deschene, City Manager 
From: Jill Eastman, Finance Director 
Re: Arena Financial Reports for November 30, 2013 
 
Attached you will find a Statement of Net Assets and a Statement of Activities for the Ingersoll Arena  
and the Norway Savings Bank Arena as of November 30, 2013.  
 
Statement of Net Assets: 
The Statement of Net Assets lists current assets, noncurrent assets, liabilities and net assets.  
 
Current Assets: 
As of the end of November 2013 the total current assets were $70,520. These consisted of cash and cash 
equivalents of $249,874, accounts receivable of $24,950 and an interfund payable of $204,304, which 
means that the Arenas owe the General Fund $204,304, so net cash available to the arena is $45,570 at 
the end of November. The large increase in the interfund payable is primarily due to the payment for 
the new Olympia Ice Machine of $122,050. The City will be reimbursed for this purchase by Mr. Schott. 
 
The accounts receivable of $24,950 consists of the following outstanding invoices for ice time that has 
been billed to various organizations. There are also current invoices that were billed in November for 
sign advertisement at the new twin sheet arena. At the end of November the outstanding accounts 
were categorized as follows: $6,555 that are current, $18,395 that are over 120 days past due. The past 
due invoice is broken down as follows: 
 
Auburn Youth Hockey: $18,395 – the original balance was $51,195, and the Youth Hockey Organization 
entered into a payment agreement and has paid a total of $32,800 towards this outstanding balance to 
date. 
 
Noncurrent Assets: 
Noncurrent assets are the building, equipment and any building and land improvements, less 
depreciation. The total value of noncurrent assets as of November 30, 2013 were $630,402. 
 
Liabilities: 
The arena liabilities as of November 30, 2013, consisted of $167 of accounts payable, which is for 
invoices that we had received, but had not processed as of the end of the month. 
 
Statement of Activities: 
 
The statement of activities shows the current operating revenue collected for the fiscal year and the 
operating expenses as well as any nonoperating revenue and expenses. 
 
The operating revenues for Ingersoll Arena through November 2013, are $73,625 and revenues for 
Norway Savings Bank Arena were $88,519. This revenue comes from the concessions, sign 
advertisements, pro shop lease, youth programming, shinny hockey, public skating and ice rentals. 



 2 

 
The operating expenses for Ingersoll Arena through November 2013, were $116,090 and for Norway 
Savings Bank Arena were $260,039. These expenses include personnel costs, supplies, utilities, repairs, 
capital purchases and maintenance. 
 
As of November 2013 the arenas have operating losses of $42,465 and $171,520 respectively. 
 
Non-operating revenue and expenses consist of interest income and debt service payments. The interest 
income to date is $693 and debt service expense to date is $82,801.  
 
As of November 31, 2013 the arenas have a combined decrease in net assets of $296,093. 
 
 



CITY OF AUBURN, MAINE
Statement of Net Assets

Proprietary Funds
November 30, 2013

Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds

Combined
ASSETS

Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 249,874$         
Interfund receivables (204,304)         
Accounts receivable 24,950            

Total current assets 70,520            
Noncurrent assets:

Capital assets:
Buildings 672,279          
Equipment 826,911          
Land improvements 18,584            
     Less accumulated depreciation (887,372)         

Total noncurrent assets 630,402          
Total assets 700,922          

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 167                 
Total liabilities 167                 

NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets 630,402          
Unrestricted 70,353            

Total net assets 700,755$         



CITY OF AUBURN, MAINE
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets

Proprietary Funds
Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds

Statement of Activities
 November 30, 2013

Norway
Ingersoll Savings
Ice Arena Arena Total

Operating revenues:
Charges for services 73,625$        88,519$          162,144$          

Operating expenses:
Personnel 59,336          32,686            92,022              
Supplies 6,784            55,755            62,539              
Utilities 41,090          90                    41,180              
Repairs and maintenance 8,614            -                       8,614                
Depreciation -                     -                       -                         
Capital expenses 132,884          132,884            
Other expenses 266                38,624            38,890              

Total operating expenses 116,090        260,039          376,129            

Operating  gain (loss) (42,465)         (171,520)        (213,985)          

Nonoperating revenue (expense):
Interest income 693                -                       693                    
Interest expense (debt service) (82,801)         -                       (82,801)             

Total nonoperating expense (82,108)         -                       (82,108)             

Gain before transfer (124,573)       (171,520)        (296,093)          

Transfers out -                     -                       

Change in net assets (124,573)       (171,520)        (296,093)          

Total net assets, July 1 996,848        -                       996,848            

Total net assets, October 31, 2013 872,275$      (171,520)$      700,755$         



City Council 

Agenda Information Sheet City of Auburn 

 

*Agenda items are not limited to these categories. 

 

 

  

 
 

Item(s) checked below represent the subject matter related to this item.   

 
Comprehensive Plan     Work Plan     Budget     Ordinance/Charter     Other Business*     Council Goals**                   

 

**If Council Goals please specify type:      Safety       Economic Development       Citizen Engagement 

 

 

Subject: Morris Auto Mart, 940 Washington Street Junkyard License Renewal 

 

Information: The business owner has made progress towards compliance but has been unable to obtain full 

compliance with the operating standards required for renewal of his license.  Staff has made a substantial effort 

to give the business a chance to comply with inspections in September, October, November and now December 

10th.  The Council has also made a substantial effort buy continuing the license hearing on two separate 

occasions to allow for more time.  State law allows that a municipality may issue a permit if the business 

complys with the required operating standards, but does not require issuance nor does it allow the municipality 

to issue the license or permit if the standards are not met.  An updated inspection memo is attached and the 

storage of vehicles within the floodplain with fluids continues to occur at the site.     

 

 

Financial: None immediately.  The cost of further enforcement will need to be considered by the Council if 

voluntary compliance cannot be obtained.   

 

Action Requested at this Meeting: Vote to deny the license renewal and to accept the findings of fact.   

 

Previous Meetings and History: September 9 Workshop and October 1 and November 4, 2013 meeting.    

 

 

Attachments:  

Order 86-10072013 

Current Flood Map 

Inspection Memorandum dated December 10, 2013 

Findings of fact     

Council Agenda Date:  December 16, 2013 Order  86-10072013 

Author:   Eric J. Cousens, Planning and Permitting Director 



Tizz E. H. Crowley, Ward One   Leroy Walker, Ward Five 

Robert Hayes, Ward Two  Belinda Gerry, At Large 

Mary Lafontaine, Ward Three  Joshua Shea, At Large 

David Young, Ward Four 

 

Jonathan LaBonte, Mayor 

 

Page 1 of 1 

 

 

IN CITY COUNCIL 

 

ORDER 86-10072013  
 

   
ORDERED, that the City Council hereby approves the annual renewal request for an Auto Graveyard/Junkyard 

permit for Morris Auto Parts, 940 Washington Street North. 



Current Flood Map  

 

1% 

Flood 

Hazard 

Area  

 



City of Auburn, Maine 
“Maine’s City of Opportunity” 

___________________________      ______ 
Office of Planning & Permitting 

60 Court Street  Suite 104  Auburn, ME 04210 

(207) 333-6600 Voice  (207) 333-6601 Automated  (207) 333-6623 Fax 

www.auburnmaine.org 
      

 

 

 

 

 

To:   Mayor and City Council 

 

From: Eric J. Cousens, Director of Planning and Permitting 

 

Re: October 2013 Junkyard License Inspections - Morris Auto Mart - 940 Washington ST. N 

 

Date:  December 10, 2013 

 

At the Council meetings on October 1st and November 4
th

, the Council postponed action on the 

Morris Auto Mart junkyard license renewal due to noncompliance with State and Local 

requirements.   

 

The inspection prior to the November 4
th

 hearing revealed that there were still some operational 

violations and some improvements from the previous inspection.  The operator was still storing 

vehicles within the floodplain and within 100’ of inland waters that contained batteries and fluids 

which is a violation of MRSA 30-A, 3754-A, 5B.  The property owner agreed to remedy the 

violations and has substantially reduced the number of vehicles containing fluids within the 

restricted areas.  They had also devised a marking system to track which vehicles have been 

processed and fluids drained.    I was given a detailed explanation of how they planned to 

comply with this requirement and the marking system was helping them do that.   

 

An inspection on December 10, 2013 was conducted with Don St. Germaine present.  The 

business essentially has three useable areas as follows: 

 

1: The front parking lot near Washington Street North.  Much of this area is out of the 100 year 

floodplain but it is not screened from view and cannot be used for storage of junk vehicles.  It 

can be used for customer and employee parking, loading/unloading and storage of operational 

vehicles and display of operational vehicles for sale.  Historically, we remind the owner to 

discontinue storing junk vehicles in this area at most annual inspections and sometimes more 

frequently throughout the year.   

 

2. Storage of new intakes.  These are vehicles that still need to be processed and then the fluids, 

batteries and mercury switches can be removed.  The process can be delayed by acquiring title to 

a vehicle. In areas outside the floodplain the law allows 180 days to do this.  In areas within the 

100-year floodplain, the storage of vehicles with fluids is prohibited.  The floodplain prohibition 

is relatively new and we have been working to bring the existing business into compliance with 

the operating standards.  The recent 2013 flood maps actually increased the area that will allow 

storage of vehicles with fluids slightly.  Staff encouraged the owner the clear storage out of the 



areas that are outside of the mapped floodplain and use them for the storage of intake vehicles. 

He may also modify the screening to increase storage area and use mapped flood areas for 

customer and employee parking.   The inspection on December 10
th

 confirmed that they have 

chosen to use an area within the floodplain for this storage and processing and there were 

approximately a dozen vehicles that the owner indicated had not been drained or processed yet.    

 

3. Long term storage of vehicles.  Although any junkyard use or development within a floodplain 

can be problematic, the law allows for longer term storage of vehicles without fluids, batteries or 

mercury switches in these areas.  I did not review all of the vehicles within the long term storage 

area as there are approximately 500, but planned to randomly check 10 vehicles unless I found 

fluids in one of them before checking all 10.  I found that the second random vehicle had not 

been drained or processed for storage within the floodplain.  The owner explained that they 

misplaced the vehicle, but that has also been the case at the previous inspections where we 

checked a larger sample and still found that about 50% contained fluids.  The problem with 

leaving the fluids in the floodplain is that when a flood occurs, like the flood last year at the 

property, the submerged cars fill with floodwater and any fluids will float out of the submerged 

engines and into the floodwater of the Little Androscoggin River.   

 

At previous inspections the owner has been cooperative and reassured staff that he would 

comply.  At the December 10
th

 inspection, Mr. St. Germaine made it very clear that he disagrees 

with the flood maps and that he believes the boundaries are incorrect.  I have previously 

explained how to have the flood maps reviewed and appealed at his expense if he disagrees.  He 

also believes he is “grandfathered” from the operating standards and, therefore, does not need to 

comply.  Although his location is grandfathered or legally nonconforming from a zoning 

perspective, he is not allowed to violate operational standards simply because he processed and 

stored vehicles in that way before the standard was in place.  It should also be noted that most if 

not all of the vehicles in question have been placed in the flood plain after the standard existed.   

 

Based on the inspections and documented noncompliance, staff recommends that the license be 

denied.  We will then follow up with the business with a deadline to remedy violations and 

reapply for a license or to eliminate the junkyard operation.  If voluntary compliance is achieved 

then there will be no legal expenses, however, it is likely that legal action will be required.  If the 

license is denied, then staff will recommend an executive session to discuss the potential legal 

matter at a future date.   

 

 



The Auburn City Council finds the following facts regarding the operation of Morris Auto 

Parts Junkyard and Auto Graveyard: 

 
1. City Staff, specifically Eric J. Cousens, Director of Planning and Permitting, conducted 3 

inspections of Morris Auto Mart at 940 Washington Street, Auburn Maine 04210, acting as an 

agent of the City Council in carrying out their responsibilities spelled out in MRSA 30-A §3754-

A. Limitations on Graveyard, Automobile Recycling Businesses and Junkyard Permits. 

 

2. Inspection 1 was conducted on September 9, 2013 and confirmed that the operator was storing 

vehicles within the floodplain and within 100’ of inland waters that still contain batteries and 

fluids which is a violation of MRSA 30-A, 3754-A, 5B.   

 

3. Pursuant to MRSA 30-A, 3754-A,10. Standard for permit. The municipal officers or county 

commissioners may issue a permit to an automobile graveyard or junkyard if that automobile graveyard or 

junkyard meets the operating standards set forth in subsection 5. 

 

4. Inspection 2 was conducted on October 1, 2013 and confirmed that the operator was storing 

vehicles within the floodplain and within 100’ of inland waters that still contain batteries and 

fluids which is a violation of MRSA 30-A, 3754-A, 5B.  As an alternative to denying the permit, 

the Auburn City Council attempted to allow additional time for the business to remedy violation 

of the MRSA 30-A, 3754-A, 5B by tabling action to the November 4, 2013 Council Meeting.   

 

5. Inspection 3 was conducted on October 28, 2013 and confirmed that the operator was storing 

vehicles within the floodplain and within 100’ of inland waters that still contain batteries and 

fluids which is a violation of MRSA 30-A, 3754-A, 5B.  As an alternative to denying the permit, 

the Auburn City Council attempted to allow additional time for the business to remedy violation 

of the MRSA 30-A, 3754-A, 5B by delaying action to the December 16, 2013 Council Meeting.  

 

6. Inspection 4 was conducted on December 10, 2013  and confirmed that the operator continues to  

store vehicles within the floodplain and within 100’ of inland waters that still contain batteries 

and/or fluids which is a violation of MRSA 30-A, 3754-A, 5B. 

 

7. The Council further concludes that they may not approve the license/permit renewal for Morris 

Auto Mart at 740 Washington Street North unless the junkyard meets the operating standards set 

forth in subsection 5 of MRSA 30-A, 3754-A. 

 

 

_________________________________ __________________________________ 

Tizz E.H. Crowley    Robert Hayes 
 

_________________________________ ___________________________________ 

Mary LaFontaine    Adam Lee 

 

_________________________________ ___________________________________ 

Leroy Walker     Belinda Gerry 

 

_________________________________  

David Young  



  |  1

30-A §3754-A. LIMITATIONS ON GRAVEYARD, AUTOMOBILE
RECYCLING BUSINESS AND JUNKYARD PERMITS

30-A §3754-A. LIMITATIONS ON GRAVEYARD, AUTOMOBILE RECYCLING
BUSINESS AND JUNKYARD PERMITS

1. Highways; Interstate System and Primary System.  A permit may not be granted for an automobile
graveyard or junkyard within 1,000 feet of the right-of-way of any highway incorporated in both the Interstate
System and Primary System or within 600 feet of the right-of-way of any other highway, except for:

A. Those automobile graveyards or junkyards that are kept entirely screened from ordinary view from
the highway at all times by natural objects, plantings or fences. Screening required by this paragraph
must be:

(1) At a height, density and depth sufficient to accomplish complete screening from ordinary view;

(2) Well constructed and properly maintained at a minimum height of 6 feet;

(3) Placed outside of the highway right-of-way; and

(4) Acceptable to the municipal officers or county commissioners; and [2003, c. 312, §9
(NEW).]

B. Those automobile graveyards or junkyards located within areas that have been zoned for industrial
use and located more than 600 feet but less than 1,000 feet from the right-of-way of any highway
incorporated in both the Interstate System and Primary System. [2003, c. 312, §9 (NEW).]

[ 2003, c. 312, §9 (NEW) .]

2. Limitation on new permits.  A permit may not be granted for an automobile graveyard or junkyard
established after October 3, 1973 and located within 100 feet of any highway.

[ 2003, c. 312, §9 (NEW) .]

3. Public facilities.  A new permit may not be granted for an automobile graveyard or junkyard that is:

A. Located within 300 feet of a public building, public park, public playground, public bathing beach,
school, church or cemetery; and [2003, c. 312, §9 (NEW).]

B. Within ordinary view from a facility under paragraph A. [2003, c. 312, §9 (NEW).]

[ 2003, c. 312, §9 (NEW) .]

4. Public and private water supplies.  A permit may not be granted for an automobile graveyard,
junkyard or automobile recycling business that handles junk, scrap metal, vehicles or other solid waste within
300 feet of a well that serves as a public or private water supply. This prohibition does not include a private
well that serves only the automobile graveyard, junkyard, automobile recycling business or the owner's or
operator's abutting residence. This prohibition does not apply to wells installed after an automobile graveyard,
junkyard or automobile recycling business has already received a permit under section 3753.

Automobile graveyards, junkyards and automobile recycling businesses operating under the terms of permits
issued prior to the effective date of this subsection and handling junk, scrap metal, vehicles or other solid
waste within 300 feet of wells that serve as public or private water supplies may continue to operate in those
locations under the terms of those permits. Municipal officers or county commissioners may renew a permit
allowing the continued handling of junk, scrap metal, vehicles or other solid waste within 300 feet of a well
serving as a public or private water supply as long as no further encroachment toward the well occurs. The
municipal officers or county commissioners may not renew a permit if there is substantial, credible evidence
that the permitted activities have caused contamination of the well.

[ 2005, c. 424, §3 (AMD) .]



MRS Title 30-A §3754-A. LIMITATIONS ON GRAVEYARD,
AUTOMOBILE RECYCLING BUSINESS AND JUNKYARD PERMITS

2  |  

5. Operating standards.  All automobile graveyards and junkyards permitted pursuant to section 3753
are required to comply with the following standards:

A. All fluids, including, but not limited to, engine lubricant, transmission fluid, brake fluid, power
steering fluid, hydraulic fluid, engine coolant, gasoline, diesel fuel and oil, must be properly handled in
such a manner that they do not leak, flow or discharge into or onto the ground or into a body of water;
[2005, c. 247, §1 (AMD);  2005, c. 247, §7 (AFF).]

B. A vehicle containing fluids may not be stored or dismantled:

(1) Within 100 feet of any body of water or freshwater wetland, as defined by Title 38, section 436-
A, subsection 5;

(2) Within the 100-year floodplain; or

(3) Over a mapped sand and gravel aquifer; [2003, c. 312, §9 (NEW).]

C. Junk, scrap metal, vehicles or other solid wastes may not be placed or deposited, directly or indirectly,
into the inland waters or tidal waters of the State or on the ice of inland waters or tidal waters or on the
banks of inland waters or tidal waters in such a manner that they may fall or be washed into these waters;
[2005, c. 247, §2 (AMD);  2005, c. 247, §7 (AFF).]

D. Junkyard and automobile graveyard owners must demonstrate at the time of licensing that the facility
or facilities for which they seek permits are, or are part of, a viable business entity and the facility or
facilities are actively engaged in the business of salvaging, recycling, dismantling, processing, repairing
or rebuilding junk or vehicles for the purpose of sale or trade; [2005, c. 683, Pt. A, §51
(RPR).]

E. A log must be maintained of all motor vehicles handled that includes the date each vehicle was
acquired, a copy of the vehicle's title or bill of sale and the date or dates upon which all fluids,
refrigerant, batteries and mercury switches were removed; [2005, c. 247, §3 (NEW); 
2005, c. 247, §7 (AFF).]

F. All fluids, refrigerant, batteries and mercury switches must be removed from motor vehicles that
lack engines or other parts that render the vehicles incapable of being driven under their own motor
power or that are otherwise incapable of being driven under their own motor power, appliances and
other items within 180 days of acquisition. Motor vehicles, appliances and other items acquired by and
on the premises of a junkyard or automobile graveyard prior to October 1, 2005 must have all fluids,
refrigerant, batteries and mercury switches removed by January 1, 2007. Fluids required to be removed
under this paragraph must be removed to the greatest extent practicable; [2005, c. 247, §3
(NEW);  2005, c. 247, §7 (AFF).]

G. Storage, recycling or disposal of all fluids, refrigerant, batteries and mercury switches must comply
with all applicable federal and state laws, rules and regulations; and [2005, c. 247, §3 (NEW);
2005, c. 247, §7 (AFF).]

H. All fluids, refrigerant, batteries and mercury switches must be removed from motor vehicles,
appliances and other items before crushing or shredding. Fluids required to be removed under this
paragraph must be removed to the greatest extent practicable. [2005, c. 247, §3 (NEW); 
2005, c. 247, §7 (AFF).]

[ 2005, c. 683, Pt. A, §51 (AMD) .]

6. Rules.  A permit, other than a limited-term permit as described in this section, may not be granted
for an automobile graveyard or automobile recycling business that is not in compliance with all applicable
provisions of the automobile dealer or recycler licensing provisions of Title 29-A, chapter 9. Municipal



MRS Title 30-A §3754-A. LIMITATIONS ON GRAVEYARD,
AUTOMOBILE RECYCLING BUSINESS AND JUNKYARD PERMITS

  |  3

officers or county commissioners may award a limited-term permit conditioned upon an automobile
graveyard's or automobile recycling business's demonstrating compliance with the provisions of Title 29-A,
chapter 9 within 90 calendar days of the issuance of the municipal or county limited-term permit.

[ 2003, c. 312, §9 (NEW) .]

6-A. Relationship to state storm water requirements.  After October 30, 2005, municipal officers
or county commissioners may reject an application for an automobile graveyard or automobile recycling
business if the applicant has not demonstrated that:

A. A notice of intent has been filed with the Department of Environmental Protection to comply with the
general permit provisions for storm water discharges; or [2005, c. 247, §4 (NEW);  2005,
c. 247, §7 (AFF).]

B. The Department of Environmental Protection has determined that a storm water discharge permit is
not required. [2005, c. 247, §4 (NEW);  2005, c. 247, §7 (AFF).]

[ 2005, c. 247, §4 (NEW);  2005, c. 247, §7 (AFF) .]

7. Local ordinances.  This subchapter may not be construed to limit a municipality's home rule authority
to enact ordinances with respect to automobile graveyards, automobile recycling businesses and junkyards
that the municipality determines reasonable, including, but not limited to, ordinances concerning:

A. Compliance with state and federal solid waste and hazardous waste regulations; [2003, c. 312,
§9 (NEW).]

B. Fire and traffic safety; [2003, c. 312, §9 (NEW).]

C. Levels of noise that can be heard outside the premises; [2003, c. 312, §9 (NEW).]

D. Distance from existing residential or institutional uses; [2003, c. 312, §9 (NEW).]

E. The effect on groundwater and surface water, as long as municipal ordinances on groundwater are no
less stringent than or inconsistent with rules adopted by the Department of Environmental Protection;
and [2003, c. 312, §9 (NEW).]

F. Best management practices for automobile graveyards, junkyards and automobile recycling businesses
developed by the Department of Environmental Protection. [2003, c. 312, §9 (NEW).]

Municipal officers or county commissioners shall consider compliance with these local ordinances in deciding
whether to grant or deny a permit for any automobile graveyard, automobile recycling business or junkyard
and in attaching conditions of approval to a permit.

[ 2003, c. 312, §9 (NEW) .]

8. Applicability.  Municipalities may apply local ordinances adopted previously under subsection 7
pertaining to automobile graveyards and junkyards to an automobile recycling business without amending
those ordinances to include automobile recycling businesses. A municipality must provide notice of its intent
to apply these ordinances at the time an application for an automobile recycling business permit is filed.

[ 2003, c. 312, §9 (NEW) .]

9. Right of entry.  Municipal officers or their designees may, to carry out the provisions of this
subchapter or to determine compliance with any laws, ordinances, license or permit approvals, decisions or
conditions:

A. Enter any automobile graveyard, junkyard or automobile recycling business property and inspect all
outside areas, equipment and activities at reasonable hours for compliance with the laws or ordinances
set forth in accordance with this subchapter; and [2003, c. 312, §9 (NEW).]



MRS Title 30-A §3754-A. LIMITATIONS ON GRAVEYARD,
AUTOMOBILE RECYCLING BUSINESS AND JUNKYARD PERMITS

4  |  

B. Enter any building on the property with the consent of the owner, occupant or agent to inspect the
building and activities within the building for compliance with the laws or ordinances set forth in
accordance with this subchapter. [2003, c. 312, §9 (NEW).]

A municipal officer's or designee's entry onto property under this subsection is not a trespass.

[ 2003, c. 312, §9 (NEW) .]

10. Standard for permit.  The municipal officers or county commissioners may issue a permit to an
automobile graveyard or junkyard if that automobile graveyard or junkyard meets the operating standards set
forth in subsection 5.

[ 2005, c. 424, §5 (NEW) .]

For purposes of revocation or suspension of a permit pursuant to section 3758-A, subsection 5, each of
the standards set forth in this section is a condition of a permit. [2005, c. 424, §6 (NEW).]

SECTION HISTORY
2003, c. 312, §9 (NEW).  2005, c. 247, §§1-4 (AMD).  2005, c. 247, §7
(AFF).  2005, c. 424, §§3-6 (AMD).  2005, c. 683, §A51 (AMD).

The State of Maine claims a copyright in its codified statutes. If you intend to republish
this material, we require that you include the following disclaimer in your publication:

All copyrights and other rights to statutory text are reserved by the State of Maine. The text included in this
publication reflects changes made through the Second Regular Session of the 125th Maine Legislature, is current

through September 1, 2012, and is subject to change without notice. It is a version that has not been officially
certified by the Secretary of State. Refer to the Maine Revised Statutes Annotated and supplements for certified text.

The Office of the Revisor of Statutes also requests that you send us one copy of any statutory
publication you may produce. Our goal is not to restrict publishing activity, but to keep track of who
is publishing what, to identify any needless duplication and to preserve the State's copyright rights.

PLEASE NOTE: The Revisor's Office cannot perform research for or provide legal advice or
interpretation of Maine law to the public. If you need legal assistance, please contact a qualified attorney.



City Council 

Agenda Information Sheet City of Auburn 

 

*Agenda items are not limited to these categories. 

 

 

  

 
 

Item(s) checked below represent the subject matter related to this workshop item.   

 
Comprehensive Plan     Work Plan     Budget     Ordinance/Charter     Other Business*     Council Goals**                   

 

**If Council Goals please specify type:      Safety       Economic Development       Citizen Engagement 

 

 

Subject:  Amendment to TIF district #14 

 

Information: The removal of 8.53 acres of land (which is the project site of the arena) from TIF district #14 

allows for the stipulation of specific terms for a development project. The amendment proposal before you 

makes adjustment to the original TIF #14 development program and financial plan based upon the removal of 

this land.  All other terms of the Development Program remain in effect. 

 

Financial: none 

 

Action Requested at this Meeting: approval 

 

Previous Meetings and History: Council workshop November 18, 2013, Council Agenda December 2, 2013 

and item was postponed until today’s meeting.  

 

Attachments:  

Order 108-12022013 approving the amendment 

 

 

 

Council Meeting Date:  December 16, 2013 Order  108-12022013 

Author:   Roland Miller 



Tizz E. H. Crowley, Ward One   Leroy Walker, Ward Five 

Robert Hayes, Ward Two  Belinda Gerry, At Large 

Mary Lafontaine, Ward Three  Joshua Shea, At Large 

David Young, Ward Four 

 

Jonathan LaBonte, Mayor 

 

Page 1 of 1 

 

 

IN CITY COUNCIL 

 

ORDER 108-12022013 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Auburn, Maine ("City") is considering whether to amend the Auburn Mall 

Revitalization and Tax Increment Financing District #14 Development Program and adopt the proposed 

amendments presented to the City Council, designation and adoption to be pursuant to the following terms and 

provisions; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City is authorized pursuant to Chapter 206 of Title 30-A of the Maine Revised Statutes, as 

amended, to remove a specified parcel of land from the previously approved (October 30, 2006) Tax Increment 

Finance District #14 - Auburn Mall Revitalization in Mall area as amended (July 20, 2009); and 

 

WHEREAS, on December 2, 2013 the City will hold a public hearing on the question of amending the 

previously approved district in accordance with the requirements of 30-A M.R.S.A. 5253, upon at least ten (10) 

days prior notice published in a newspaper of general circulation within the City; and 

 

WHEREAS, it is expected that approval will be sought and obtained from the Maine Department of Economic 

and Community Development approving the amendment of the district; 

 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT HEREBY ORDERED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF AUBURN: 

 

Tax Increment Finance District #14 - Auburn Mall revitalization be amended to remove tax parcel 290-010-001 

from the district and the baseline valuation be adjusted to recognize that removal and the City Manager be 

authorized to submit this amendment to the Maine Department of Economic and Community Development. 



City Council 

Agenda Information Sheet City of Auburn 

 

*Agenda items are not limited to these categories. 

 

 

  

 
 

Item(s) checked below represent the subject matter related to this workshop item.   

 
Comprehensive Plan     Work Plan     Budget     Ordinance/Charter     Other Business*     Council Goals**                   

 

**If Council Goals please specify type:      Safety       Economic Development       Citizen Engagement 

 

 

Subject: Approval of creating TIF #18 

 

Information: The creation of a new TIF district #18 establishes a 20 year credit enhancement contract with the 

landlord. The impact of the proposed TIF district will be to reduce the rent payments to the City of Auburn by 

the amount of tax obligation associated with facility. The proposal is: 1) for the first five years 100%; 2) for 

years 6 through 10 75%; 3) for years 11 through 15 50%; and for years 16 through 20 25%.  

 

Financial: The impact of establishing TIF district #18 is that the profit from the operation of the facility will 

increased and those funds will accrue to an enterprise account for the continued upkeep and operation of the 

arena. 

 

Action Requested at this Meeting: Approval 

 

Previous Meetings and History: Workshop 11-18-13, Council Agenda 12-2-2013 but item was postponed 

until today’s meeting. 

 

Attachments:  

Order 109-12022013  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Council Meeting Date:  December 16, 2013 Order  109-12022013 

Author:   Roland Miller 



Tizz E. H. Crowley, Ward One   Leroy Walker, Ward Five 

Robert Hayes, Ward Two  Belinda Gerry, At Large 

Mary Lafontaine, Ward Three  Joshua Shea, At Large 

David Young, Ward Four 

 

Jonathan LaBonte, Mayor 

 

Page 1 of 2 

 

 

IN CITY COUNCIL 

 

ORDER 109-12022013 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Auburn, Maine ("City") is considering whether to designate Auburn Municipal Tax 

Increment Finance District #18 and adopt the Development Program for the District presented to the City 

Council, designation and adoption to be pursuant to the following terms and provisions; and  

 

WHEREAS, the City is authorized pursuant to Chapter 206 of Title 30-A of the Maine Revised Statutes, as 

amended, to designate specified areas within the City as a Municipal Development and Tax Increment Finance 

District (the "District") and to adopt a development program and financing plan for such a district; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City continues to recognize the need for more commercial development in the City; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City finds that there is a need to provide expanded employment opportunities for the citizens 

of Auburn, to improve and broaden the tax base of the City and to improve the general economy of the City, the 

surrounding region and the State of Maine; and 

 

WHEREAS, the expansion of commercial development will enable the City to expand its tax base, improve the 

economic climate in order to attract additional businesses to the City; and 

 

WHEREAS, there is a need to encourage the expansion, improvement and continuation of commercial 

facilities through the establishment of the Auburn Municipal Tax Increment Finance District #18 in accordance 

with the provisions of Chapter 206 of Title 30 - A; and 

 

WHEREAS, on December 2, 2013 the City held a public hearing creating the "District" in accordance with the 

requirements of Maine Revised Statutes upon at least ten (10) days prior notice published in newspaper of 

general circulation within the City; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City desires to designate the Auburn Municipal Tax Increment Financing District #18 and 

adopt the development program for such a district; and 

 

WHEREAS, it is expected that approval will be sought and obtained from the Maine Department of Economic 

and Community Development approving the designation of the District and the adoption of the Development 

Program for the District; 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT HEREBY ORDERED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF AUBURN: 

 

Section 1. The City hereby finds and determines that: 

 



Page 2 of 2 

 

A. At least 25%, by area, of the real property within the district, as hereby designated, is suitable for commercial 

development; and 

B. The total area of the District does not exceed 2% of the total acreage of the City, and the total area of all 

development districts within the City (including the District) does not exceed 5% of the total acreage of the 

City; and 

C. The total equalized value of taxable property within the District as of April 1, 2013 together with equalized 

value of taxable property in other existing districts does not exceed 5% of the total equalized value of taxable 

property within the City; and 

D. The designation of the District and pursuant to the development program will generate substantial economic 

benefits for the City and its residents, including employment opportunities, broadening in improving the tax 

base and serve as an economic stimulus and therefore constitutes a good and valid public purpose. 

 

Section 2. Pursuant to Chapter 206 of Title 30 - A of the Maine Revised Statutes, as amended, the City hereby 

designates Auburn Municipal Tax Increment Financing District #18 Development Program, designated and 

described as more particularly set forth in the form attached hereto and presented to the City Council and such 

development program is hereby incorporated by reference into the Development Program for the District. 

 

Section 3. The City Manager be, and hereby is, authorized, empowered and directed to submit the proposed 

designation of the District and the proposed Development Program for the District to the State of Maine 

Department of Economic and Community Development for review and approval pursuant to statutory 

requirements. 

 

Section 4. The City Manager be, and hereby is, authorized and empowered, at his discretion, from time to time, 

to make such technical revisions to the Development Program for the District as may be reasonably necessary 

or convenient in order to facilitate the process for review and approval of the District by the State of Maine 

Department of Economic and Community Development, or for any other reason, so long as such revisions are 

not inconsistent with these resolutions or the basic structure and intent of the Development Program. 

 

Section 5. The foregoing designation of the District and the adoption of the Development Program for the 

District shall become final and shall take full force and effect upon receipt by the City of approval of the 

designation of the District and adoption of the Development Program by the Department of Economic and 

Community Development, without requirements of further action by the City, the City Council, or any other 

party. 

 

Section 6. The City Manager be, and hereby is, authorized and directed to enter into the Credit Enhancement 

Agreement contemplated by the Development Program, and in the name of and on behalf of the City, such 

agreement to be in such form and to contain such terms and provisions, not inconsistent with the Development 

Program, as the City Manager may approve, such approval to the conclusively evidenced by such execution 

thereof. 



City Council 

Agenda Information Sheet City of Auburn 

 

*Agenda items are not limited to these categories. 

 

 

  

 
 

Item(s) checked below represent the subject matter related to this workshop item.   

 
Comprehensive Plan     Work Plan    Budget     Ordinance/Charter     Other Business*     Council Goals**                   

 

**If Council Goals please specify type:      Safety       Economic Development       Citizen Engagement 

 

 

Subject: Acceptance of the FY13 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) 

 

Information: The FY 13 CAFR is complete and needs to be accepted. 

 

Financial:  

 

Action Requested at this Meeting: Passage 

 

Previous Meetings and History: Presentation by Casey Leonard of the auditing firm Runyon Kersteen and 

Ouellette  

 

Attachments:  

Electronic Copy of CAFR (Printed Copy to be handed out at the meeting) 

Order 115-12162013 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Council Meeting Date:  December 16, 2013 Order  115-12162013 

Author:   Jill M. Eastman, Finance Director 



Tizz E. H. Crowley, Ward One   Leroy Walker, Ward Five 

Robert Hayes, Ward Two  Belinda Gerry, At Large 

Mary Lafontaine, Ward Three  David Young, At Large 

Adam Lee, Ward Four 

 

Jonathan P. LaBonte, Mayor 

 

Page 1 of 1 

 

 

IN CITY COUNCIL 

 

ORDER 115-12162013 

 
ORDERED, that the Auburn City Council accept the Fiscal Year 2013 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report 

as presented by Casey Leonard of Runyon Kersteen Ouellette on December 16, 2013. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



City Council 

Agenda Information Sheet City of Auburn 

 

*Agenda items are not limited to these categories. 

 

 

  

 
 

Item(s) checked below represent the subject matter related to this workshop item.   

 
Comprehensive Plan     Work Plan     Budget     Ordinance/Charter     Other Business*     Council Goals**                   

 

**If Council Goals please specify type:      Safety       Economic Development       Citizen Engagement 

 

 

Subject: Authorizing the City Manager to execute two collective bargaining agreements with MAP Command 

Unit.  

 

Information: Map Command Unit represents Police Sergeants and Lieutenants.   The contract expired June 30, 

2013.  The Union and Management have been working on a successor contract since that time.  We have 

reached a tentative agreement.    

 

This Information Sheet covers two contracts.  The first is effective 7/1/13 through 6/30/14.   The second is a 

three year contract covering 7/1/14 through 6/30/17. This contract includes a change in the health insurance 

plan, and an in-service retirement plan, as well as other language items. 

 

Financial: There is no wage increase in FY 14.  The contract provides a 2% wage adjustment for FY 15 and 3% 

wage adjustments for FY 16 and FY 17. It also includes an additional step in the third year of the contract to 

bring the salaries closer to those paid in comparable communities. 

 

Action Requested at this Meeting: Recommend passage 

 

Previous Meetings and History: The Police Command Unit contracts were discussed in previous Executive 

Sessions, the most recent on 12/3/13.  

 

Attachments:  

Order 116-12162013 

 

 

  Council Meeting Date:  December 16, 2013 Order  116-121620103 

Author:   Deborah Grimmig, Human Resources Director 



































































































































Tizz E. H. Crowley, Ward One   Leroy Walker, Ward Five 

Robert Hayes, Ward Two  Belinda Gerry, At Large 

Mary Lafontaine, Ward Three  David Young, At Large 

Adam Lee, Ward Four 

 

Jonathan P. LaBonte, Mayor 

 

Page 1 of 1 

 

 

IN CITY COUNCIL 

 

ORDER 116-12162013 

 
ORDERED, that the City Council hereby authorizes the City Manager to execute the Collective Bargaining 

Agreement with MAP (Maine Association of Police) Command Unit for July 1, 2013 through June 30, 2014. 

 

BE IT FURTHER ORDERED, that the City Council hereby authorizes the City Manager to execute the 

Collective Bargaining Agreement with MAP (Maine Association of Police) Command Unit for July 1, 2014 

through June 30, 2017. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



City Council 

Agenda Information Sheet City of Auburn 

 

*Agenda items are not limited to these categories. 

 

 

  

 
 

Item(s) checked below represent the subject matter related to this workshop item.   

 
Comprehensive Plan     Work Plan     Budget     Ordinance/Charter     Other Business*     Council Goals**                   

 

**If Council Goals please specify type:      Safety       Economic Development       Citizen Engagement 

 

 

Subject: Auburn Firefighters Association - I.A.F.F. Local 797 negotiations update. 

 

Information: I.A.F.F. Local 797 represents Firefighters, Lieutenants, Captains and Battalion Chiefs.  The 

contract expired on December 31, 2012. The Union and Management have been working on a successor 

contract since that time. We have reached a tentative agreement. 

 

This information sheet covers two agreements. The first is a short bridge effective 1/1/13 through 6/30/13.  This 

is a status quo contract. The second is a three year agreement covering 7/1/13 through 6/30/16. The second 

agreement includes a change in the health insurance, implementation of an in-service retirement program, 

change in the retirement plan, a reduction in apparatus staffing and a number of other language items.  

 

Financial: The multi-year contract provides for steps in the first year of the contract, suspension of steps in FY 

15 and FY 16 and 2% wage adjustments in FY 15 and FY 16. This multi-year contract represents a sustainable 

pay and benefits package.  

 

Action Requested at this Meeting: Discussion with action during the meeting.  

 

Previous Meetings and History: The I.A.F.F. contracts were discussed in previous Executive Sessions, the 

most recent being 12/2/13. . 

 

Attachments:  

Order 117-12162013 

 

 

Council Meeting Date:  December 16, 2013 Order  117-12162013 

Author:   Deborah Grimmig, Human Resources Director 



Tizz E. H. Crowley, Ward One   Leroy Walker, Ward Five 

Robert Hayes, Ward Two  Belinda Gerry, At Large 

Mary Lafontaine, Ward Three  David Young, At Large 

Adam Lee, Ward Four 

 

Jonathan P. LaBonte, Mayor 

 

Page 1 of 1 

 

 

IN CITY COUNCIL 

 

ORDER 117-12162013 

 
ORDERED, that the City Council hereby authorizes the City Manager to execute the Collective Bargaining 

Agreement with I.A.F.F. (International Association of Firefighters) Local 797 for January 1, 2013 through June 

30, 2013. 

 

BE IT FURTHER ORDERED, that the City Council hereby authorizes the City Manager to execute the 

Collective Bargaining Agreement with I.A.F.F. (International Association of Firefighters) Local 797 for July 1, 

2013 through June 30, 2016. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



City Council 

Information Sheet City of Auburn 

 

 

  Council Meeting Date: December 16, 2013   

 

   

 

Subject: Executive Session  

 

Information: Discussion on the Labor Negotiations (MAP Patrol), pursuant to 1 M.R.S.A. §405(6)(D)  

 

 
Executive Session:  On occasion, the City Council discusses matters which are required or allowed by State law to be considered 

in executive session.  Executive sessions are not open to the public.  The matters that are discussed in executive session are 

required to be kept confidential until they become a matter of public discussion.  In order to go into executive session, a Councilor 

must make a motion in public.  The motion must be recorded, and 3/5 of the members of the Council must vote to go into 

executive session.  An executive session is not required to be scheduled in advance as an agenda item, although when it is known 

at the time that the agenda is finalized, it will be listed on the agenda. The only topics which may be discussed in executive 

session are those that fall within one of the categories set forth in Title 1 M.R.S.A. Section 405(6).  Those applicable to municipal 

government are: 

A. Discussion of personnel issues 

B. Discussion or consideration by a school board of suspension of expulsion 

C. Discussion or consideration of the condition, acquisition or the use of real or personal property permanently attached to real 

property or interests therein or disposition of publicly held property or economic development only if premature disclosures 

of the information would prejudice the competitive or bargaining position of the body or agency   

D. Labor contracts 

E. Contemplated litigation 

F. Discussions of information contained in records made, maintained or received by a body or agency when access by the 

general public to those records is prohibited by statute; 

G. Discussion or approval of the content of examinations administered by a body or agency for licensing, permitting or 

employment purposes; consultation between a body or agency and any entity that provides examination services to that body 

or agency regarding the content of an examination; and review of examinations with the person examined; and 

H. Consultations between municipal officers and a code enforcement officer representing the municipality pursuant to Title 30-

A, section 4452, subsection 1, paragraph in the prosecution of an enforcement matter pending in District Court when the 

consultation relates to that pending enforcement matter.  

 

 

    
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 


	0  Agenda 12-16-2013
	1  Workshop Info Sheet Executive Session - City Manager Evaluation
	2  Workshop Info Sheet TIF update
	2a  Ice Arena 12-12-13 Projected Revenues and Expenses for FY14-16
	2b  Memo to Clint Tax Payments Update  12-4-2013
	2c  Memo enterprise funds
	2d  TIF attachement - Assessment
	2e  TIF Ice Arena answer to questions 11-25-13 (2)
	2f  TIF 14 Amend#2 - final documents to council11-22-13
	2g  final TIF #18 documents
	3  Workshop Info Sheet - Ingersoll Way
	3a  IngersollWayproposedstreetname19nov13- Leroys request
	3b  Arena Access Roadway
	3c  Naming Street by arena
	4  workshop Info Sheet - IAFF Local 797 CBA's
	4a  IAFF 797 Contract 1
	4b  IAFF 797 Contract 2
	5  Agenda Info Sheet  MOSER
	5a  MOSER    MEMO TO CITY MANAGER
	5b  ORDER  112-12162013 MOSER
	6  Agenda Info Sheet Constable  BROWN
	6a  BROWN    CONSTABLE  MEMO   12-2013
	6b  Order 113-12162013 Constable BROWN
	7  Agenda Info Sheet Tree Harvesting
	7a  tree harvesting
	7b  Order 114-12162013 Tree Moratorium
	8  Minutes 12-2-2013
	9  Councilor Report - Bob Hayes
	9a  Councilor Report - Tizz Crowley
	11  Final November 2013 Finance Report
	BS
	rev
	exp
	inv summary
	Arena Monthly Report- November 2013.pdf
	Balance Sheet
	Income Statement


	13  Agenda Info Sheet Morris Auto Parts December 16 2013
	13a  Order 86-10072013 Morris Auto
	13b  Current Flood Map
	13c  Inspection memo Morris Auto December 13
	13d  Morris Auto Mart Findings
	13e  Morris Auto doc - title30-Asec3754-A
	14  Agenda Info Sheet TIF #14 Amendment
	14a  Order 108-12022013 TIF 14
	15  Agenda Info Sheet TIF #18 Approval
	15a  Order 109-12022013 TIF 18
	16  agenda info sheet audit acceptance
	16b  Order 115-12162013 fy 13 audit acceptance
	17  Agenda Info Sheet - MAP Command CBA's
	17a  MAP COMMAND Contract  1
	17b  MAP Command Contract 2
	17c  Order 116-12162013   MAP Command Unit  7-1-13 to 6-30-14
	18  Agenda Info Sheet - IAFF Local 797 CBA's
	18c  Order 117-12162013   I A F F  Local 797 1-1-13 to 6-30-13
	19  Executive Session info sheet

